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3M COMPANY

FORM 10-Q

For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2017
PART I. Financial Information

Iltem 1. Financial Statements.

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income
(Unaudited)

Three months ended

Nine months ended

September 30, September 30,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net sale $ 8,172 $ 7,709 $ 23,667% 22,780
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 4,045 3,847 11,921 11,324

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,623 1,531 4,830 4,624

Research, development and related expenses 463 427 1,407 1,314

Gain on sale of businesses — — (490) (40)

Total operating expenses 6,131 5,805 17,668 17,222

Operating income 2,041 1,904 5,999 5,558
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 57 50 156 135

Interest income (13) (8) (33) (20)

Total interest expense — net 44 42 123 115

Income before income taxes 1,997 1,862 5,876 5,443
Provision for income taxes 564 531 1,532 1,541
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 1433 $ 1,331 $ 4,344% 3,902
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeietst 4 2 9 I
Net income attributable to 3| $ 1429 $ 1329 $ 4,335% 3,895
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 597.6 604.4 597.9 606.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehs — basic $ 239 $ 220 $ 7.25% 6.43
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding wtedil 612.7 618.8 612.5 620.3
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddehs —dilutec $ 233 $ 215 $ 7.08% 6.28
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share $ 1175 $ 111 $ 3.525% 3.33

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,433 $ 1,331 4344 $ 3,902
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 44 17 269 192
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans
adjustment 80 67 241 203
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsflos (49) (45) (176 (182
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 75 39 334 213
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrgllin
interest 1,508 1,370 4,678 4,115
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norrodlintg
interest 3) 3 (11) (@)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 1505 $ 1,367 $ 4,667 $ 4,108

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Unaudited)

September 30,

December 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2017 2016
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2831 $ 2,398
Marketable securities — current 586 280
Accounts receivable — net 5,156 4,392
Inventories
Finished goods 1,962 1,629
Work in process 1,164 1,039
Raw materials and supplies 849 717
Total inventories 3,975 3,385
Other current assets 1,108 1,271
Total current assets 13,656 11,726
Marketable securities — non-current 17 17
Investments 139 128
Property, plant and equipment 24,659 23,499
Less: Accumulated depreciation (16,001) (14,983)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,658 8,516
Goodwill 9,221 9,166
Intangible assets — net 2,175 2,320
Prepaid pension benefits 105 52
Other assets 1,266 981
Total assets $ 35237 $ 32,906
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt $ 83 % 972
Accounts payable 1,824 1,798
Accrued payroll 856 678
Accrued income taxes 374 299
Other current liabilities 2,709 2,472
Total current liabilities 6,598 6,219
Long-term debt 10,828 10,678
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,748 4,018
Other liabilities 1,861 1,648
Total liabilities $ 23,035 $ 22,563
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value, 944,033sb5ées issued $ 9 $ 9
Additional paid-in capital 5,302 5,061
Retained earnings 39,454 37,907
Treasury stock, at cost: 348,424,948 shares ae®yer 30, 2017,
347,306,778 shares at December 31, 2016 (25,706) (25,434)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,913 (7,245
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 12,146 10,298
Noncontrolling intere: 56 45
Total equity $ 12,202 $ 10,343
Total liabilities and equity $ 35,237 $ 32,906

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.




3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Nine months ended
September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 4,344 $ 3,902

Adjustments to reconcile net income including narioalling interest to net
cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 1,195 1,090
Company pension and postretirement contributions (314 (323
Company pension and postretirement expense 244 180
Stock-based compensation expense 266 244
Gain on sale of businesses (490) (40)
Deferred income taxes (105, (100
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (595, (469
Inventories (436) (15)
Accounts payable (25) (207
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) 249 155
Other — net 47 (64)
Net cash provided by operating activit 4,380 4,453
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (914 (984
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (12 a7
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (1,055) (1,036)
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablerggss and investments 745 794
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net of cash sold 862 56
Other — net 2 (4)
Net cash used in investing activiti (354) (1,173)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net 60 (498
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (650) (992)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — 2,832
Purchases of treasury stock (1,564) (2,829)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoasibtk option and benefit
plans 582 741
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,104) (2,014)
Other — net (23) (20
Net cash used in financing activiti (3,699) (2,780)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 106 10
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 433 510
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,398 1,798
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,831 $ 2,308

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements au@udited but, in the opinion of management, refidichdjustments
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’saltated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments congistrofal, recurring items. The results of operatifamsany interim
period are not necessarily indicative of resultsiie full year. The interim consolidated finanatdtements and notes
are presented as permitted by the requiremen®@darterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

As described in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-KediaMay 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Repo
Form 10-K) and 3M’s Quarterly Reports on Form 1@@the periods ended March 31, 2017 and June BRD7,2
effective in the first quarter of 2017, the Compahgnged its business segment reporting in itdroaing effort to
improve the alignment of businesses around maegeiscustomers. These changes included the integraftithe
former Renewable Energy Division into existing diehs, the combining of two divisions to form thatémotive and
Aerospace Solutions Division, and consolidatiotd®. customer account activity, impacting dual dregporting.
Segment information presented herein reflectsripact of these changes for all periods presented. Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunctigh the Company’s consolidated financial statemant$ notes
included in its Current Report on Form 8-K datedyMa2017.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the fanat currencies outside the United States. Asmedsliabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are teded at month-end exchange rates of the perioariegh Income and
expense items are translated at month-end exchategeof each applicable month. Cumulative traisiedjustments
are recorded as a component of accumulated othegpretiensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

3M has a subsidiary in Venezuela, the financigkst@nts of which are remeasured as if its functionaency were
that of its parent because Venezuela’'s economica@ament is considered highly inflationary. The méng income of
this subsidiary represented less than 1.0 perde3itlts consolidated operating income for 2016. Menezuelan
government sets official rates of exchange and itiong precedent to purchase foreign currencyeddhrates with local
currency. The government also operates variousrgdqehsecondary currency exchange mechanisms thablean
eliminated and replaced from time to time. Suckgand conditions have been and continue to beuoj change.
For the periods presented, the financial statenad8M’s Venezuelan subsidiary were remeasuredzintg the rate
associated with the secondary auction mechanigpo, d&@ Cambio Complementario, which was redesigyatd
Venezuelan government in June 2017 (DICOM2), opliesiecessor. During the same periods, the Vermzuel
government’s official exchange was Tipo de Cambimtdyido (DIPRO), or its predecessor.



Note 1 in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Miay017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual ReporEonm 10-
K) provides additional information the Company ddess in determining the exchange rate used relativts
Venezuelan subsidiary as well as factors whichd:tedd to its deconsolidation. The Company consrtoemonitor
these circumstances. Changes in applicable exchrategor exchange mechanisms may continue iruthest These
changes could impact the rate of exchange appédahiemeasure the Company’s net monetary assdisifjes)
denominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF). As oft8efber 30, 2017, the Company had a balance of osétary
assets denominated in VEF of less than 10 billi&@#\and the DIPRO and DICOM2 exchange rates were
approximately 10 VEF and 3,300 VEF per U.S. dollespectively. A need to deconsolidate the CommaWgnezuelan
subsidiary’s operations may result from a lackxaffengeability of VEF-denominated cash coupled wittacute
degradation in the ability to make key operatiadedisions due to government regulations in Venezlgdsed upon a
review of factors as of September 30, 2017, the i@ continues to consolidate its Venezuelan sidrgidAs of
September 30, 2017, the balance of accumulated otineprehensive loss associated with this subsidias
approximately $145 million and the amount of intenpany receivables due from this subsidiary antbitd equity
balance were not significant.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in prior periods’ consolidated fiicial statements have been reclassified to conforiime current
period presentation.

Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M sharéstanding for calculating basic and diluted earsipgr share
attributable to 3M common shareholders is a rasfithe dilution associated with the Company’s stbeked
compensation plans. Certain options outstandingutietse stock-based compensation plans wereclatied in the
computation of diluted earnings per share attribletéo 3M common shareholders because they woultiane had a
dilutive effect (insignificant for the three montéeded September 30, 2017; 1.1 million averageogtior the nine
months ended September 30, 2017; insignificanthiethree months ended September 30, 2016; andiligh
average options for the nine months ended Septe®ih&016). The computations for basic and dil@axhings per
share follow:

Earnings Per Share Computations
Three months ended  Nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Numerator
Net income attributable to 3M $1,429 $1,329 $4,335 $3,895

Denominator:
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding- basic  597.6 604.4 597.9 606.2

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basatipensation plans 15.1 14.4 14.6 14.1

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding- dilutec 612.7 618.8 6125 620.3

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddehs— basic $239 $ 220 $ 725 $ 643
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehns— diluted $233 $ 215 $ 7.08 $ 6.28

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsi@q&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ARW)2014-
09, Revenue from Contracts with Customensd in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, whintended the standard
as to effective date. The ASU provides a singlef@mensive model to be used in the accountingegfoenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes mornt revenue recognition guidance, including stduspecific



guidance. The standard’s stated core principleasdn entity should recognize revenue to depéetrdnsfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration to which thetgrgkpects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicesadhieve this core principle the ASU includes sions within a five
step model that includes identifying the contraithva customer, identifying the performance obligas in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating tla@saction price to the performance obligationd, r@eognizing
revenue when (or as) an entity satisfies a perfoo@abligation. The standard also specifies thewting for some
costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a custemand requires expanded disclosures about theenamount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arisiomfcontracts with customers. During 2016, the FASB® issued
ASU No. 2016-08Principal versus Agent Considerations (ReportingdXeie Gross versus NefjSU No. 2016-10,
Identifying Performance Obligations and LicensidgU No. 2016-12Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical
Expedientsand ASU No. 2016-20,echnical Corrections and Improvements to Topic, 608/enue from Contracts with
Customersvhich amend ASU No. 2014-09. These amendmentadeatlarification of principal versus agent guidanc
in situations in which a revenue transaction inesla third party in providing goods or servicea tustomer. In such
circumstances, an entity must determine whethenalgre of its promise to the customer is to prevtie underlying
goods or services (i.e., the entity is the principahe transaction) or to arrange for the thiedtp to provide the
underlying goods or services (i.e., the entityhis agent in the transaction). The amendments glaniterms of
identifying performance obligations, how entitiesudd determine whether promised goods or serviceseparately
identifiable from other promises in a contract atheérefore, would be accounted for separately. dihéance allows
entities to disregard goods or services that amaatarial in the context of a contract and providesccounting policy
election to account for shipping and handling aiés as fulfillment costs rather than as additiggramised services.
With regard to the licensing, the amendments gldrifw an entity would evaluate the nature of itsnpise in granting a
license of intellectual property, which determindsether the entity recognizes revenue over timat arpoint in time.
The amendments also address implementation isslative to transition (adding a practical expedfentcontract
modifications and clarifying what constitutes a @ated contract when employing full or modifiedrosipective
transition methods), collectability, noncash coasidion, and the presentation of sales and oth@lasitype taxes
(allowing entities to exclude sales-type taxeseméld from transaction price). Finally, the amendisenake certain
technical corrections and provide additional guaaim the areas of disclosure of performance otitiga, provisions
for losses on certain types of contracts, scogng,other areas. Overall, ASU No. 2014-09, as apwrqutovides for
either full retrospective adoption or a modifiettespective adoption by which it is applied onlytihe most current
period presented. For 3M, the ASU is effective dayd, 2018 and the Company has concluded thall itifilize the
modified retrospective method of adoption. 3M couéis to evaluate the standard’s impact on its dioiaded results of
operations and financial condition. In additioretgpanded disclosures regarding revenue, the ASU éopact the
timing of revenue and certain cost recognition. 1348 conducted initial analyses, executed projectigement relative
to the process of adopting this ASU, and is finafjizdetailed contract reviews to complete necesadjystments to
existing accounting policies and quantify the ASBffect. For most of 3M’s revenue arrangementssignificant
impacts are expected as these transactions aeeomtnted for under industry-specific guidance wilitbe superseded
by the ASU and generally consist of a single penomce obligation to transfer promised goods orisesv However,
3M engages in some arrangements for which softimaistry-specific guidance (which the ASU supersgdie
presently utilized. The Company has considerecethengements in the detailed contract reviewshidnee been
conducted. While 3M will continue to finalize it§farts relative to the adoption of ASU No. 2014-068sed on the
analysis completed to date, the Company does maiotxhis standard to have a material impact ocoitsolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modified previous
requirements regarding measuring inventory atahet of cost or market. Under previous standatdsmarket
amount required consideration of replacement cwdtrealizable value (NRV), and NRV less an appnately normal
profit margin. The new ASU replaced market with NRié¢fined as estimated selling prices in the omgicaurse of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of letiom, disposal and transportation. This elimidatee need to
determine and consider replacement cost or NRVdesspproximately normal profit margin when measyiri
inventory. 3M adopted this standard prospectivelgibning January 1, 2017. The adoption did not lzaxreaterial
impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operatiomd financial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) thesification and measurement of investments iritgqu



securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaiue changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements asedaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiarggjuity securities and other ownership interastmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpedgoint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation angl not accounted for under the equity methodti&ntvill need to
measure these investments and recognize chanfgsyalue in net income. Entities will no longes hble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #ézsithey classify under current guidance as atsel for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valuestead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicapiexception and
measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysiations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondasosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the famlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OClpitr¢ion of the total fair value change attributatdenstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabikti#r which the FVO
has been elected, however, any changes in faieatributable to instrument-specific credit riskudd continue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent witnent guidance. For 3M, this standard is effeckigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company igently assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results pemtions and financial condition; however, 3M historically held
limited amounts of equity securities and cost métimvestments (less than $75 million in aggrega®eptember 30,
2017), and has not elected the FVO with respentaterial financial liabilities.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@2asesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would neeutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesfiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanmer similar to current accounting. The ASU dustsmake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accouniogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and aligmsnaber of the underlying principles with thosdlef new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating haleatability should be considered and determinitgen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existingegtate-specific provisions and requires exparnpeditative and
guantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifireddretrospective transition by which it is apgaliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryuhy2019.
Information under existing lease guidance with eespo rent expense for operating leases and thg@&oy’s minimum
lease payments for capital and operating leasésnmib-cancelable terms in excess of one year Beoémber 31, 2016
is included in Note 14 in 3M’s Current Report orriiRd8-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 20TthAal
Report on Form 10-K). The Company is currently assgy this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated resolft
operations and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumeitisis ASU
clarified guidance used to determine if debt insients that contain contingent put or call opticetuire separation of
the embedded put or call feature from the debtunsént and trigger accounting for the feature derévative with
changes in fair value recorded through income. Uittenew guidance, fewer put or call options endieeldn debt
instruments require derivative accounting. For 8\ ASU was effective January 1, 2017. The Comjsaoytstanding
debt with embedded put provisions did not requéasate derivative accounting under previous guielaAs a result,
the adoption of this standard did not have a nelteripact on the Company’s consolidated resuligpafrations and
financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAaftounting
which eliminated the previous requirement to agpl/equity method of accounting retrospectivelyigiag prior
periods as if the equity method had always beetliet)pvhen an entity obtained significant influerameer a previously
held investment. The new guidance requires thestoveo apply the equity method prospectively frine date the
investment qualifies for the equity method. Theestor would add the carrying value of the existingestment to the
cost of any additional investment to determineitiitéal cost basis of the equity method investmé&ior 3M, this ASU
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was effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectivesba®l will apply this guidance to investments ttrahsition to the
equity method after the adoption date.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016M8asurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruyevhich
revises guidance for the accounting for creditdesan financial instruments within its scope. The/istandard
introduces an approach, based on expected lossestiiate credit losses on certain types of fiigitstruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-foresdebt securities. The new approach to estimatiedjtdosses
(referred to as the current expected credit lossmiel) applies to most financial assets measuradattized cost and
certain other instruments, including trade and otbeeivables, loans, held-to-maturity debt se@sitnet investments
in leases and off-balance-sheet credit exposuréh. dspect to available-for-sale (AFS) debt sdims; the ASU
amends the current other-than-temporary impairnmatel. For such securities with unrealized lossesties will still
consider if a portion of any impairment is relatedy to credit losses and therefore recognizedraslaction in income.
However, rather than also reflecting that credislamount as a permanent reduction in cost (aredrtiast) basis of
that AFS debt security, the ASU requires that ¢redises be reflected as an allowance. As a rasuder certain
circumstances, a recovery in value could resyfr@vious allowances, or portions thereof, reversiagk into income.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2020, watrly adoption permitted. Entities are requiredgply the
standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjestt to retained earnings as of the beginning efitist reporting
period in which the guidance is adopted. The Comsourrently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3bbasolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016QBkssification of Certain Cash Receipts and CashrRentswhich
was intended to reduce diversity in practice in lo@ntain cash receipts and payments are presemtiedassified in the
statement of cash flows. The standard providedaguid in a number of situations including, amongshsettlement
of zero-coupon bonds, contingent consideration gagsmade after a business combination, proceedstfre
settlement of insurance claims, and distributi@t®ived from equity method investees. The ASU pisweided
guidance for classifying cash receipts and paynthatshave aspects of more than one class of tash.fThe
Company early adopted ASU No. 2016-15 as of Januag2@17. Since the associated changes in classificwere
immaterial to all prior periods presented, no impaas reflected in the Company’s pre-2017 const@idiaesults of
operations and financial condition presented.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016t8a-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventavhich
modifies existing guidance and is intended to rediigersity in practice with respect to the accouqfor the income
tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of as3déte ASU indicates that the current exceptioin¢come tax
accounting that requires companies to defer theniectax effects of certain intercompany transastieauld apply
only to intercompany inventory transactions. Tlsatlie exception would no longer apply to intercampsales and
transfers of other assets (e.g., intangible assédtg)er the existing exception, income tax expasseciated with intra-
entity profits in an intercompany sale or transfeassets is eliminated from earnings. Instead,abst is deferred and
recorded on the balance sheet (e.g., as a pregset) aintil the assets leave the consolidated g®uglarly, the entity
is prohibited from recognizing deferred tax as$etdhe increases in tax bases due to the interaognpale or transfer.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2018. Btendard requires modified retrospective transititth a cumulative
catch-up adjustment to opening retained earningjseperiod of adoption. Upon adoption, a compaould write off
any income tax effects that had been deferred frast intercompany transactions involving non-ineepnassets to
opening retained earnings. In addition, an entibyld record deferred tax assets with an offsepning retained
earnings for amounts that entity had previouslyreobgnized under existing guidance but would raecegunder the
new guidance. While 3M could initiate additionadkrant transactions prior to this ASU’s adoptioteddased on
deferred tax amounts related to applicable pastéompany transactions as of September 30, 20& Cdimpany does
not expect this ASU to have a material impact oris3ddnsolidated results of operations and finanoaaldition.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016tferests Held through Related Parties That Arear@iommon
Control, which modified previous guidance with respedidwv a decision maker that holds an indirect intsirea
variable interest entity (VIE) through a common ttohparty determines whether it is the primary é&femary of the

VIE as part of the analysis of whether the VIE weboéed to be consolidated. Under the ASU, a decisiaker would
need to consider only its proportionate indireteiiest in the VIE held through a common controtypd?revious
guidance had required the decision maker to treatdmmon control party’s interest in the VIE ath#& decision maker
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held the interest itself. As a result of the ASitJcertain cases, previous consolidation conclusioag change. For 3M,
the standard was effective January 1, 2017 witlospective application to January 1, 2016. 3M dudhave
significant involvement with entities subject tonsolidation considerations impacted by VIE modetdes. As a result,
the adoption of this ASU did not have a materighdct on the Company’s consolidated results of djggraand
financial condition.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016Rstricted Cashwhich clarified guidance on the classification
and presentation of restricted cash in the statenfezash flows. Under the ASU, changes in resdatash and
restricted cash equivalents would be included alwitig those of cash and cash equivalents in therstnt of cash
flows. As a result, entities would no longer preégesnsfers between cash/equivalents and restraaskl/equivalents in
the statement of cash flows. In addition, a red@imn between the balance sheet and the stateofieash flows
would be disclosed when the balance sheet inclomge than one line item for cash/equivalents astticted
cash/equivalents. The Company early adopted ASIRPRD6-18 as of January 1, 2017. Due to the imnadtese of
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalentsnpact was reflected in the Company’s pre-201%&obdated results
of operations and financial condition presented.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017d)arifying the Definition of a Busineswhich narrows the existing
definition of a business and provides a frameworlelvaluating whether a transaction should be ateolfor as an
acquisition (or disposal) of assets or a busiriElss.ASU requires an entity to evaluate if subsédlytiall of the fair

value of the gross assets acquired is concentiatedingle identifiable asset or a group of simideentifiable assets; if
s0, the set of transferred assets and activit@ie@tively, the set) is not a business. To be mred a business, the set
would need to include an input and a substantieegss that together significantly contribute todbéity to create
outputs. The standard also narrows the definitiomutputs. The definition of a business affectsaaref accounting such
as acquisitions, disposals and goodwill. Undemién guidance, fewer acquired sets are expected tosidered
businesses. For 3M, this ASU is effective Janua30L8 on a prospective basis with early adoptemitted. 3M

would apply this guidance to applicable transactiafter the adoption date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017Swhplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairmektnder the new
standard, goodwill impairment would be measurethasamount by which a reporting unit’'s carryingueakxceeds its
fair value, not to exceed the carrying value ofdyitl. This ASU eliminates existing guidance thatjuires an entity to
determine goodwill impairment by calculating thepiiad fair value of goodwill by hypothetically ageing the fair
value of a reporting unit to all of its assets &daMilities as if that reporting unit had been aicgd in a business
combination. For 3M, this ASU is effective prospeely to impairment tests beginning January 1, 20@th early
adoption permitted at the time of any interim inmpant test that may be performed prior to that.dzité currently
plans to apply this ASU in the fourth quarter oflZ0n conjunction with its annual goodwill impairmeesting.

In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017dl&rifying the Scope of Asset Derecognition Guideaond
Accounting for Partial Sales of Nonfinancial Assdisis ASU addresses scope-related questions ribse after the
FASB issued its revenue guidance in ASU No. 2014R@%enue from Contracts with Customédrse new standard
clarifies the accounting for derecognition of noaficial assets and defines what is considered subistance
nonfinancial asset. Nonfinancial assets largelgtesio items such as real estate, ships and ictigdlieproperty that do
not constitute a business. The new ASU impactsiesiierecognizing (e.g. selling) nonfinancial &sger in substance
nonfinancial assets), including partial intereber¢in, when the purchaser is not a customer. Uihéemew guidance,
the seller would apply certain recognition and meament principles of ASU No. 2014-(Revenue from Contracts
with Customerseven though the purchaser is not a customer3Moithis new standard is effective coincident vtk
Company’s January 1, 2018 adoption of ASU No. 2024The Company is currently assessing this ASkdjsact on
3M'’s consolidated results of operations and finahcondition.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017407proving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pensimst and Net
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Co3this ASU changes how employers that sponsor ééfivenefit pension and/or
other postretirement benefit plans present thgpeebdic benefit cost in the income statement. Wilde new standard,
only the service cost component of net periodicefienost would be included in operating expensesanly the
service cost component would be eligible for cdiziiéion into assets such as inventory. All other periodic benefit
costs components (such as interest, expected r@tupian assets, prior service cost amortizatiahauarial gain/loss
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amortization) would be reported outside of operatitome. For 3M, this ASU is effective Januar2Q18 on a
retrospective basis; however, guidance limitingdapitalization to only the service cost componsmatpplied on
prospective basis. The components of 3M’s net daridefined benefit pension and postretirement fiecests are
presented in Note 9. These include componentdrtgtalbenefit of $31 million and $50 million forettthree months
ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectivaly$@h million and $156 million for the nine mon#rsded
September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, thatdvoulonger be included within operating experesas instead
would be reported outside of income from operatiomder the new standard.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-BBmium Amortization on Purchased Callable Dedxt8ities
which amends the amortization period for certairchased callable debt securities held at a premiiimder existing
standards, entities generally amortize the prendaran adjustment of yield over the contractualdfféhe instrument.
The new guidance shortens the amortization peddhe earliest call date for certain callable dsaturities that have
explicit, noncontingent call features and are tédlat a fixed price and preset date. The amendninhot require an
accounting change for securities held at a discdtoit3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2019t modified
retrospective transition resulting in a cumulateféect adjustment to retained earnings as of tigininéng of the first
reporting period in which the guidance is adopteatly adoption is permitted. 3M’s marketable sagypbrtfolio
includes very limited instances of callable delmusities held at a premium. As a result, the Corgpioes not expect
this ASU to have a material impact on 3M’s consatidl results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-88ope of Modification Accountintpat clarifies when changes to the
terms or conditions of a share-based payment amasd be accounted for as a modification. The gémeodel for
accounting for modifications of share-based payragrards is to record the incremental value arifiog the changes
as additional compensation cost. Under the newdataln fewer changes to the terms of an award wagjdire
accounting under this modification model. For 3NMstASU is effective January 1, 2018, with earlpptibn permitted.
Because the Company does not typically make changée terms or conditions of its issued sharetgmyment
awards, 3M does not expect this ASU to have a nadierpact on its consolidated results of operatiand financial
condition.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-D@termining the Customer of the Operation Servites clarifies
how an operating entity determines the customénebperation services for transactions withindbepe of a service
concession arrangement. Service concession arramgerre typically agreements between a grantoaaraperating
entity whereby the operating entity will operate tirantor’s infrastructure (i.e. airports, roadwaygdges, and prisons)
for a specified period of time. The operating grilso may be required to maintain the infrastrreeand provide
capital-intensive maintenance to enhance or extsrifie. In such arrangements, typically the opieraservices (i.e.
operation and maintenance of a roadway) would kd by third parties (i.e. drivers). The ASU cla#ithat the grantor,
not the third party, is the customer of the operatiervices in such arrangements. For 3M, thisstandard is effective
coincident with the Company’s January 1, 2018 adapif ASU No. 2014-09. Because the Company isypitally a
party to agreements within the scope of accourfingervice concession arrangements, 3M does maatxhis ASU to
have a material impact on its consolidated regiltgperations and financial condition.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017Part I) Accounting for Certain Financial Instrumtsnvith Down
Round Features, (Part 1) Replacement of the ImdiefiDeferral for Mandatorily Redeemable Finandiastruments of
Certain Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatoridgdeemable Noncontrolling Interests with a Scopmftion The
new standard applies to issuers of financial imsamts with down-round features. A down-round priaviss a term in
an equity-linked financial instrument (i.e. a frieggling warrant contract or an equity conversiaiue embedded
within a host debt or equity contract) that triggardownward adjustment to the instrument’s spikee (or conversion
price) if equity shares are issued at a lower placeequity-linked financial instruments are issa¢é lower strike price)
than the instrument’s then-current strike pricee Parpose of the feature is typically to proteetithstrument’s
counterparty from future issuances of equity shatesmore favorable price. The ASU amends (1ikhssification of
such instruments as liabilities or equity by ravisthe certain guidance relative to evaluatingéfyt must be accounted
for as derivative instruments and (2) the guidamteecognition and measurement of freestandingyeglassified
instruments. For 3M, this ASU is effective Januarg019, with early adoption permitted. BecauseGbmpany has
not issued financial instruments with down-roundatfees, 3M does not expect this ASU to have a niahierpact on its
consolidated results of operations and financiabion.
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In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-Tlageted Improvements to Accounting for HedgingvAigs. The
ASU amends existing guidance to simplify the agilan of hedge accounting in certain situations ali@wv companies
to better align their hedge accounting with thisik management activities. Existing standards éorrtain
requirements for an instrument to qualify for hedgeounting relative to initial and ongoing asse=sisiof hedge
effectiveness. While an initial quantitative tesestablish the hedge relationship is highly effectvould still be
required, the new ASU permits subsequent qualgaBsessments for certain hedges instead of aitgtiaattest and
expands the timeline for performing the initial gtieative assessment. The ASU also simplifies eglaccounting by
eliminating the requirement to separately measnderaport hedge ineffectiveness. Instead, for uag cash flow and
net investment hedges, the entire change in faiev@ncluding the amount attributable to ineffeetiess) will be
recorded within other comprehensive income andisadfied to earnings in the same income statermenthat is used
to present the earnings effect of the hedged itéwrvihe hedged item affects earnings. For fairevhkdges, generally,
the entire change in fair value of the hedgingrimeent would also be presented in the same incdéatensent line as
the hedged item. The new standard also simplifiesatcounting for fair value hedges of interest restks and expands
an entity’s ability to hedge nonfinancial and fio&i risk components. In addition, the guidance @&ases certain
documentation requirements, modifies the accouriingomponents excluded from the assessment afehed
effectiveness, and requires additional tabularioészes of derivative and hedge-related informatir 3M, this ASU
is effective January 1, 2019, with a modified refrective transition resulting in a cumulative-effadjustment recorded
to the opening balance of retained earnings alsechtioption date. Early adoption is permitted. Thenpany is
currently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3M’s cdidsted results of operations and financial comodiiti

NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses frome tio time that are aligned with its strategic mmteith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacemyat lines or technologies. Goodwill resultingnfrbusiness
combinations is largely attributable to the exigtimorkforce of the acquired businesses and syresyipected to arise
after 3M’s acquisition of these businesses.

In September 2017, 3M purchased all of the ownpristierests of Elution Technologies, LLC, a Vermbased
manufacturer of test kits that help enable food laevkrage companies ensure their products ardréngecertain
potentially harmful allergens such as peanuts,asayilk. Elution is reported within the Company’s#&lth Care
business.

In October 2017, 3M completed the acquisition ef timderlying legal entities and associated as$&sait Safety,
which is headquartered in Monroe, North Carolimagrf Johnson Controls for $2.0 billion of cash, ofetlosing and
other adjustments. Scott Safety is a premier matwfar of innovative products, including self-caned breathing
apparatus systems, gas and flame detection institsjrend other safety devices that complement 3Mdisonal safety
portfolio. The business had revenues of approxityp&®70 million in 2016. Scott Safety will be reped within 3M'’s
Safety and Graphics business. The Company is ipribeess of completing its initial accounting fhistacquisition

and, accordingly, has not included disclosurediveldo the allocation of purchase consideratioth®respective assets
and liabilities acquired. 3M expects to finalize #ilocation of purchase price within the one yeaasurement-period
following the acquisition.

Pro forma information related to acquisitions hasbeen included because the impact on the Compaoyisolidated
results of operations was not considered material.

Divestitures:
3M may divest certain businesses from time to tiraged upon reviews of the Company'’s portfolio adeishg, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftey& and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellitptbusinesses results in the greatest value andatithe Company and
for shareholders.
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In January 2017, 3M sold the assets of its safetgquiption eyewear business, with annual saleppfoximately $45
million, to HOYA Vision Care. The Company recordegre-tax gain of $29 million in the first quartdr2017 as a
result of this sale, which was reported within @@mpany’s Safety and Graphics business.

In May 2017, 3M completed the related sale or fiemsf control, as applicable, of its identity mgeanent business to
Gemalto N.V. This business, with 2016 sales of appnately $205 million, is a leading provider iremtity
management solutions, including biometric hardveare software that enable identity verification andhentication, as
well as secure materials and document readersinkn 2017, 3M also completed the sale of its toléind automated
license/number plate recognition business, withuahsales of approximately $40 million, to Neolo@ng. 3M’s tolling
and automated license/number plate recognitiomiessiincludes RFID readers and tags, automaticleehi
classification systems, lane controller and hofitxsoe, and back office software and serviceslsi arovides mobile
and fixed cameras, software, and services in autmieEense/number plate recognition. 3M receivaertpeds of $833
million, or $809 million net of cash sold, and exfled a pre-tax gain of $461 million in the secqudrter of 2017 as a
result of these two divestitures, which was repbwéhin the Company’s Safety and Graphics business

In October 2017, 3M sold its electronic monitorimgsiness to an affiliate of Apax Partners for $&tillion, net of cash
sold and closing and other adjustments. This basingith annual sales of approximately $95 millisra provider of
electronic monitoring technologies, serving hundreticorrectional and law enforcement agenciesratdine world.
3M expects to reflect a pre-tax gain of approxirya$d.00 million in the fourth quarter of 2017 asesult of this
divestiture, which will be reported within the Coamy’s Safety and Graphics business.

The aggregate operating income of these divestsithdsses was less than $20 million in 2016. Thecepate
amounts of major assets and liabilities associaifddisposal groups classified as held-for-salefaSeptember 30,
2017 were not significant and, as of December 8162included the following:

December 31,

(Millions) 2016

Accounts receivable $ 25
Property, plant and equipment (net) 25
Intangible assets 35
Deferred revenue (other current liabilities) 35

In addition, approximately $50 million and $270 lioih of goodwill was estimated to be attributaldedisposal groups
classified as held-for-sale as of September 307 20l December 31, 2016, respectively, based wgative fair value.
The amounts above have not been segregated anthssdied within the existing corresponding litems on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Refer to Note 2 in 3M’s Current Report on Form &lted May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annugh&tt on
Form 10-K) for more information on 3M’s acquisit®and divestitures.
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NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Purchased goodwill from acquisitions totaled $diomilduring the first nine months of 2017, all ofiish is deductible
for tax purposes. The amounts in the “Translatioth @her” column in the following table primarilglate to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. The goodwill badarby business segment as of December 31, 2016 and
September 30, 2017, follow:

Goodwill
December 31, 2016 Acquisition Divestiture Translation September 30, 2017

(Millions) Balance activity activity and other Balance
Industrial $ 2,536 $ — $ — $ 128 $ 2,664
Safety and Graphics 3,324 — (276) 98 3,146
Health Care 1,609 6 — 59 1,674
Electronics and Energy 1,489 — — 37 1,526
Consumer 208 — — 3 211
Total Company $ 9,166 $ 6 $ (276) $ 325 % 9,221

Accounting standards require that goodwill be g$te impairment annually and between annual t@stertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units generallyroespond to a division.

As described in Note 14, effective in the first gaaof 2017, the Company changed its business eegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygirchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiegphe relative fair value method to determine itthpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2017, the Company completed#isessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsmimpacted by this new structure and determinatirth impairment
existed.

Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticecgfiired finite-lived intangible assets, in additio the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Sepeerd®, 2017, and December 31, 2016, follow:

September 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,924 $ 1,939
Patents 586 602
Other technology-based intangible assets 478 524
Definite-lived tradenames 393 420
Other amortizable intangible assets 211 211
Total gross carrying amount $ 3592 $ 3,696
Accumulated amortization — customer related (865) (797)
Accumulated amortization — patents (500 (497
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (293) (302)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (238 (236
Accumulated amortization — other (167) (173)
Total accumulated amortization $ (2,063 $ (2,005

Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1,529 $ 1,691
Norn-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 646 629

Total intangible assets — net $ 2,175 $ 2,320
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3M does not amortize certain acquired tradenameause they have been in existence for over 55 yleave a history
of leading-market share positions, are intendeuktoontinuously renewed, and the associated prodwetexpected to
generate cash flows for 3M for an indefinite peraddime.

Amortization expense for acquired intangible astmtshe three and nine months ended Septemb&®(, and 2016
follows:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Amortization expense $ 51 $ 63 $ 162 $ 195

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdntgzimtangible assets recorded as of Septembe&t(AJ,:

Remainder
of After
(Millions) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 202
Amortization expense $ 49 $ 192 $ 183 $ 174 $ 162 $ 148 $ 602

The preceding expected amortization expense istimate. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. @ble tabove excludes
the impact of the carrying value of finite-livedangible assets associated with disposal grougsifieed as held-for-
sale at September 30, 2017. See Note 2 for additaetails. 3M expenses the costs incurred to remexxtend the
term of intangible assets.
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NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions and Exit Activities

2017 Restructuring Actions:

During the second quarter of 2017, management apdrand committed to undertake certain restruajuaictions
primarily focused on portfolio and footprint optimation. These actions affected approximately 1Btions
worldwide and resulted in a second quarter 201#greharges of $99 million. Remaining activitietated to
restructuring are expected to be completed by rideog 2018.

Components of these restructuring charges are sugeday business segment as follows:

Second Quarter 2017

(Millions) Employee-Related
Industrial $ 39
Safety and Graphics 9
Health Care 2
Electronics and Energy 7
Consumer 36
Corporate and Unallocated 6
Total Expense $ 99

The preceding restructuring charges were recomiéukiincome statement as follows:

(Millions) Second Quarter 2017
Cost of sales $ 86
Selling, general and administrative expenses 5
Research, development and related expenses 8
Total $ 99

Components of these restructuring actions, follow:

Employee-
(Millions) Related
Expense incurred in the second quarter of 2017 $ 99
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Jun@@07 $ 99
Cash payments 3)
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Septer®d, 2017 $ 96

2017 Exit Activities:

In the first quarter of 2017, the Company recordetpre-tax charges of $24 million related to extivities. These
charges related to employee reductions, primanilestern Europe.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Three months ended September 30, 2017

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained  Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 11644 $ 5253 $ 38,793 $ (25,466 $ (6,989 $ 53
Net incom: 1,433 1,429 4
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 44 45 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsament 80 80 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaiss)jo (49) (49 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 75
Dividends declared (701 (701
Stock-based compensation 58 58
Reacquired stock (394 (394
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 87 (67) 154
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ 122202 $ 5311 $ 39454 $ (25,706 $ (6,913 $ 56

Nine months ended September 30, 2017

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 10,343 $ 5070 $ 37,907 $ (25434 $ (7,245 $ 45
Net incom: 4,344 4,335 9
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 269 267 2
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 241 241 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (176 (176, —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 334
Dividends declared (2,104 (2,104
Stock-based compensation 241 241
Reacquired stock (1,547 (1,547
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 591 (684) 1,275
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ 12202 $ 5311 $ 39454 $ (25706 $ (6,913 $ 56
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Three months ended September 30, 2016

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained  Treasury Income controlling
(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 11658 $ 4972 $ 36915 $ (24,088 $ (6,184 $ 43
Net incom: 1,331 1,329 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 17 16 1
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsament 67 67 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (45) (45) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 39
Dividends declared (670 (670
Stock-based compensation 49 49
Reacquired stock (771 (771
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 133 (108) 241
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 11,769 $ 5021 $ 37,466 $ (24618 $ (6,146 $ 46
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained  Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11468 $ 4,800 $ 36,296 $ (23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Net incom: 3,902 3,895 7
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 192 192 —
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjssament 203 203 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaiss)jo (182 (182 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 213
Dividends declared (2,014 (2,014
Stock-based compensation 221 221
Reacquired stock (2,771 (2,771
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 750 (711 1,461
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 11,769 $ 5021 $ 37466 $ (24,618 $ (6,146 $ 46
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Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé_¢ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Three months ended September 30, 2017

Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments,  Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at June 30, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,786 $ (5167 $ (36) $ (6,989
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (29 — (80) (209
Amounts reclassified out — 119 2 121
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (29 119 (78) 12
Tax effect 74 (39) 29 64
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 45 80 (49) 76
Balance at September 30, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,741) $ (5087) $ (85 $ (6,913
Nine months ended September 30, 2017
Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (2,008 $ (5,328 $ 91 $ (7,245
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 30 — (255 (225
Amounts reclassified out — 357 (21) 336
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 30 357 (276 111
Tax effect 237 (116) 100 221
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 267 241 (176; 332
Balance at September 30, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,741) $ (5087) % (85 $ (6,913
Three months ended September 30, 2016
Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments,  Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at June 30, 2016, net of tax: $ (1503 $ (4668 $ (13) $ (6,184
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (8) — (44) (52)
Amounts reclassified out — 103 (24) 79
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (8) 103 (68) 27
Tax effect 24 (36) 23 11
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 16 67 (45) 38
Balance at September 30, 2016, net of tax: $ (1487) $ (4601) $ (58) $ (6,146
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Nine months ended September 30, 2016

Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative ~ Postretirement  Instruments, ~Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1679 $ (4,804 $ 124 $ (6,359
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 111 — (180 (69)
Amounts reclassified out — 307 (104 203
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 111 307 (284 134
Tax effect 81 (104) 102 79
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 192 203 (182 213
Balance at September 30, 2016, net of tax $ (1487) $ (4601 $ (58) $ (6,146

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transtatielating to permanent investments in internatisubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does it impacts from items such as net investment heedgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldozdunting in comprehensive income items thaidse recorded as

part of net income.
Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income Attributable to 3M
Amount Reclassified from

Accumulated Othr Comprehensive Income
Three months end&éptember30, Nine months ended Septembe30.

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income Components

Location on Income

(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 Statement
Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefit
pension and postretirement plans amortization
Transition asset $ — 3 — % — 3 1 See Note9
Prior service benefit 21 22 65 69 See Note 9
Net actuarial loss (140 (125 (422 (377 See Note 9
Total before tax (119) (103) (357 (307
Provision for incom
Tax effect 39 36 116 104 taxes
Net of tas $ 80) $ 67) $ (241 $ (203
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2 $ 24 $ 21 % 105 Cost of sales
Interest rate swap contracts — — — (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 2) 24 21 104
Provision for incom
Tax effect — (9) (8) (38 taxes
Net of tay $ 2 $ 15 $ 13 % 66
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax$ 82) $ (52) $ (228 $ (137
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NOTE 6. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.® federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctamxeexaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@menpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IR8ipos within these tax years and entered intcatthainistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 201X tmpany received a statutory notice of deficiefarythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courtha first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylR® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015, 2016,
and 2017. It is anticipated that the IRS will coatplits examination of the Company for 2015 byehe of the fourth
quarter of 2017, for 2016 by the end of the finsaider of 2018, and for 2017 by the end of the &sarter of 2019. As
of September 30, 2017, the IRS has not proposegignificant adjustments to the Company'’s tax pasg for which
the Company is not adequately reserved.

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgaitiom the 2005 through 2017 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the Gappnd the IRS on such assessments or upon adsw@ution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeatamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’s uncersipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafitissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatiites. Currently, the Company is estimatingaesse in
unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 moatha result of anticipated resolutions of audiiés. The total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that, if reced, would affect the effective tax rate as git®mber 30, 2017
and December 31, 2016 are $384 million and $33Bomjlrespectively.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax egpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeinicofne on a gross basis approximately $8 milliod $11 million
of expense for the three months ended Septemb@03d,and September 30, 2016, respectively, anbaippately
$16 million and $8 million of expense for the nimenths ended September 30, 2017 and Septembe®@B®), 2
respectively. At September 30, 2017 and Decembe2@ll6, accrued interest and penalties in the dinlaged balance
sheet on a gross basis were $64 million and $5®milrespectively. Included in these interest padalty amounts are
interest and penalties related to tax positionsMoich the ultimate deductibility is highly certadut for which there is
uncertainty about the timing of such deductibilBgcause of the impact of deferred tax accounttitgr than interest
and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter cidallity period would not affect the annual effetet tax rate but
would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxirtority to an earlier period.

The effective tax rate for the third quarter of 20¢as 28.3 percent, compared to 28.5 percent ithtteequarter of
2016, a decrease of 0.2 percentage points. Prifaaiyrs that decreased the Company’s effectiveatxon a
combined basis by 4.0 percentage points year-onigeladed international taxes that were impactgdhanges to the
geographic mix of income before taxes and prior yeah optimization actions, increased benefitsftbe R&D tax
credit, and other items. This decrease was partidiset by a 3.8 percentage point year-on-yeaeiase to the
Company’s effective tax rate. Primary factors thateased the effective tax rate included remeasemnés of 3M's
uncertain tax positions and a lower year-on-yeaess tax benefit related to employee share-basadqis.

The effective tax rate for the first nine month®6f7 was 26.1 percent, compared to 28.3 percehgifirst nine
months of 2016, a decrease of 2.2 percentage péiriteary factors that decreased the Company'stiffetax rate on
a combined basis by 3.0 percentage points foritsierfine months of 2017 when compared to the gaened for 2016
included international taxes that were impactedhmnges to the geographic mix of income beforestaxel prior year
cash optimization actions, tax benefits resultirmgf the held-for-sale status of certain legal &#jtincreased benefits
from the R&D tax credit, and other items. This adese was partially offset by a 0.8 percentage peat-on-year

23



increase, which included remeasurements of 3M’&xam tax positions and a lower year-on-year extas benefit
related to employee share-based payments.

The provision for income taxes is determined usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apghnpdeferred
income taxes represent the expected future taxequiesices of temporary differences between theingramounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Compangnds a valuation allowance to reduce its defetagdissets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exits. 86September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, dhgp@ny had
valuation allowances of $62 million and $47 million its deferred tax assets, respectively.

NOTE 7. Marketable Securities
The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other

securities. The following is a summary of amoustsorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for radoleesecurities
(current and non-current).

September 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ 10
Commercial paper 446 14
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 84 197
U.S. municipal securities 3 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 14 31

Credit card related 29 18

Other — 7
Asset-backed securities total 43 56
Current marketable securities $ 586 $ 280
U.S. municipal securities $ 17 $ 17
Non-current marketable securities $ 17 $ 17
Total marketable securities $ 603 $ 297

Classification of marketable securities as curognton-current is based on the nature of the siesiand availability
for use in current operations. At September 307201d December 31, 2016, gross unrealized gainsrallodses (pre-
tax) were not material. The gross amounts of thézaed gains or losses were not material. Coseofisties sold use
the first in, first out (FIFO) method. Since thesarketable securities are classified as availaiiesdle securities,
changes in fair value will flow through other compensive income, with amounts reclassified outlo¢io
comprehensive income into earnings upon sale detathan-temporary” impairment.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietalcurities in accordance with the measuremedaguoe
provided by ASC 320nvestments-Debt and Equity Securitieben determining the classification of the imp=nt as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporanmgpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoegcorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitetsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-teenporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between temposad other-than-temporary include the projectédréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@ber factors.

24



The balances at September 30, 2017 for marketableises by contractual maturity are shown belé&atual
maturities may differ from contractual maturitieschuse the issuers of the securities may havegthieto prepay
obligations without prepayment penalties.

(Millions) September 30, 2017

Due in one year or less $ 582
Due after one year through five years 17
Due after five years through ten years 4
Total marketable securities $ 603

3M has a diversified marketable securities pomfdiithin this portfolio, asset-backed securitiesmarily include
interests in automobile loans, credit cards andratisset-backed securities. 3M’s investment paiows investments
in asset-backed securities with minimum credinggiof Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service or AA byisiard &
Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRS. Asset-backed sgéeamust be rated by at least two of the afordioaad rating
agencies, one of which must be Moody’s Investorsi€e or Standard & Poor’s. At September 30, 2@ll7asset-
backed security investments were in compliance thithpolicy. Approximately 79.9 percent of all asbacked
security investments were rated AAA or A-1+ by $aml & Poor’s and/or Aaa or P-1 by Moody’s InvestBervice
and/or AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Interest ratkrand credit risk related to the underlying cfal may impact the
value of investments in asset-backed securitiedevidctors such as general conditions in the diveradit market and
the nature of the underlying collateral may aftbet liquidity of investments in asset-backed sei@si 3M does not
currently expect risk related to its holding inetslsacked securities to materially impact its ficiahcondition or
liquidity.

NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings
In June 2017, 3M repaid $650 million aggregate@pial amount of fixed rate medium-term notes thatured.

In October 2017, 3M issued $650 million aggregategipal amount of 5.5-year fixed rate medium-terates due 2023
with a coupon rate of 2.25%, $850 million aggregatacipal amount of 10-year fixed rate medium-terates due
2027 with a coupon rate of 2.875%, and $500 milaggregate principal amount of 30-year fixed ragelimm-term
notes due 2047 with a coupon rate of 3.625%.

In October 2017, 3M, via cash tender offers, repased $305 million aggregate principal amountbiitstanding
notes. This included $110 million of its $330 nai principal amount of 6.375% notes due 2028 argb$iillion of its
$750 million principal amount of 5.70% notes du820The Company will reflect an early debt extirgument charge
of approximately $95 million in the fourth quart&r2017 within interest expense associated wittdifferential
between the carrying value and the amount paiddoige the tendered notes and related expenses.
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NOTE 9. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost désaselling, general and administrative expersed;research,
development and related expenses. Components pEnetlic benefit cost and other supplemental mfion for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 201Z0r&dfollow:

Benefit Plan Information

Three months ended September 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 67 $ 64 $33 $35 $ 13 $ 13
Interest cost 141 144 38 45 20 20
Expected return on plan assets (259 (261, (69 (78 (21 (23
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — — — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (5) (6) 3) 3 (@3 (@13
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 97 89 29 21 14 15
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 41 $ 30 $28 $20 $ 13 $ 12

Nine months ended September 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 201 $ 194 $ 100 $ 102 $ 38 $ 40
Interest cost 425 431 112 131 59 59
Expected return on plan assets (777 (782, (208 (234 (63) (68)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — Q) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) a7, (18) 9) (10} (39) (41
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 291 265 89 66 42 46
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $123 $ 90 $ 84 $ 54 $ 37 $ 36

For the nine months ended September 30, 2017 ilsotiéms totaling $311 million were made to the Qamy’s U.S.
and international pension plans and $3 milliontsgostretirement plans. For total year 2017, thm@any expects to
contribute approximately $300 million to $500 nahi of cash to its global defined benefit pensiod postretirement
plans. The Company does not have a required minicagh pension contribution obligation for its Up&ans in 2017.
Future contributions will depend on market condisipinterest rates and other factors. 3M’s annsurement date
for pension and postretirement assets and liaslis December 31 each year, which is also theusat for the related
annual measurement assumptions.

3M was informed in 2009, that the general partoéi/G Trading Company, in which 3M’s benefit pldmsd limited
partnership interests, are the subject of a crihimeestigation as well as civil proceedings by 8#C and CFTC
(Commodity Futures Trading Commission). In Marci 20over the objections of 3M and six other limiettners of
WG Trading Company, the district court judge ruledavor of the court appointed receiver’s propodedribution plan
(and in April 2013, the United States Court of Aglisefor the Second Circuit affirmed the districtd®s ruling). The
benefit plan trustee holdings of WG Trading Compantgrests were adjusted to reflect the decreas@mated fair
market value, inclusive of estimated insurance @eds, as of the annual measurement dates. Irrshediarter of 2014,
3M and certain 3M benefit plans filed a lawsuittthas removed by the insurers to the U.S. Dis€iztirt for the
District of Minnesota against five insurers seekiimgurance coverage for the WG Trading Companyrclai
September 2015, the court ruled in favor of theedeéant insurance companies on a motion for sumjndgment and

26



dismissed the lawsuit. In October 2015, 3M and3tiebenefit plans filed a notice of appeal to thatelh States Court
of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. In May 2017, thepellate court affirmed the lower court’s deaisidhe decision will
reduce U.S. pension and postretirement plan asgeg3 million at the December 31, 2017 measuremiate and will
not have a material adverse effect on the condelibinancial position of the Company.

As part of a diversified investment strategy, th&pension and postretirement benefit plans magesiments in the
natural gas fired power generation industry duthgperiod 2011 through 2013. In April 2017, on¢hafse entities,
Panda Temple Power, LLC, filed for Chapter 11 baptay protection in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court foe District of
Delaware. This investment represented less thamereent of the fair value of the U.S. pension postretirement
plans’ assets as of their 2016 measurement date.

NOTE 10. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiartre@ts to
manage risks generally associated with foreign amxgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fatidns. The
information that follows explains the various typdslerivatives and financial instruments used bl Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaareunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiiancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative megdgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 5. Adxtial information with respect to the fair valuedafrivative
instruments is included in Note 11. Referencesformation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimaents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt &e adade in Note 10 in 3M’s Current Report on Fori @ated May
4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report omfr 10-K).

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inclugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component afratbmprehensive income and reclassified into agsiin the same
period during which the hedged transaction affearsings. Gains and losses on the derivative reptieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frmnassessment of effectiveness are recognizedrnent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tleeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash flo@saiminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidras cash flow hedges. The settlement or extensithese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraaecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiflyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge ne#tips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the deneainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive ireéon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted transaciccurs or becomes probable of not occurringngésin the
value of derivative instruments after dedesignatimmrecorded in earnings and are included in grévBtives Not
Designated as Hedging Instruments section below.maximum length of time over which 3M hedges xgasure to
the variability in future cash flows of the foretas transactions is 36 months.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtee Company may use forward starting interestcatgracts to hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows from interpalyments on forecasted debt issuances. The aat@tizof gains and
losses on forward starting interest rate swapscisided in the tables below as part of the gais#jlaecognized in
income on the effective portion of derivatives assult of reclassification from accumulated otbemprehensive
income. Additional information regarding previougdgued and terminated interest rate contractdedound in Note
12 in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May@}17 (which updated 3M’'s 2016 Annual Report on F&a¥K).
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In the first nine months of 2016, the Company exdento forward starting interest rate swaps tlaired in December
2016 with an aggregate notional amount of $300ionilhs a hedge against interest rate volatilitpeiased with a
forecasted issuance of fixed rate debt. Upon ismiahmedium-term notes in September 2016, 3M teated these
interest rate swaps. The termination resulted imamaterial loss within accumulated other comprehenincome that
will be amortized over the respective lives of thedbt.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company enténémiforward starting interest rate swaps with &amal amount of
$200 million as a hedge against interest rate Nityadssociated with a forecasted issuance ofdfirate debt. In the
first, second, and third quarters of 2017, the Camypentered into additional forward starting ingtmate swaps with
notional amounts of $200 million in each quartehadges against interest rate volatility associatiétd a forecasted
issuance of fixed rate debt. Prior to the issuariceedium-term notes in October 2017, 3M termindleste interest
rate swaps. The termination resulted in an immaltéoss within accumulated other comprehensiverimethat will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debt.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company had a balz@5 million associated with the after-tax netealized loss
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @@@in accumulated other comprehensive income.imbigdes a
remaining balance of $8 million (after tax losdated to the forward starting interest rate swagsch will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debseBlzon exchange rates as of September 30, 201&xpétts to
reclassify approximately $9 million of the aftextaet unrealized foreign exchange cash flow hedtyiages to earnings
over the remainder of 2017, approximately $44 oillof the after-tax net unrealized foreign exchacegh flow
hedging losses to earnings in 2018, and approxiyn&82 million of the after-tax net unrealized faye exchange cash
flow hedging losses to earnings after 2018 (withithpact offset by earnings/losses from underlyiadged items). 3M
expects to reclassify approximately $50 milliortlod after-tax net unrealized foreign exchange élashhedging losses
to earnings over the next 12 months.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathbases
related to derivative instruments designated als tas/ hedges are provided in the following table.

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Three months ended September 30, 2017

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective

Portion okBvative

Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognized in Incoen

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (77) Cost of sales $ (2) Cost of sales $
Interest rate swap contracts (3) Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ (80) $ ©3) $
Nine months ended September 30, 2017
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (249, Cost of sales $ 21 Cost of sales $
Interest rate swap contracts (6) Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ 255 $ 21 $
Three months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (47) Cost of sales $ 24 Costofsales $
Interest rate swap contracts 3 Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ 44) $ 24 $
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (178, Cost of sales $ 105 Costofsales $
Interest rate swap contracts (2) Interest expense (1) Interest expense
Total $ 180, $ 104 $
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Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swajpéte Company manages interest expense using afriked and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @asnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under tags@gements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified al&grhe difference between fixed and floatingrese amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yaiue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses arfitdet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faiev@edges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness. Additional informatiegarding designated interest rate swaps caourglfin Note 12 in
3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 20d/hi¢h updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toadiegvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infdomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Three months ended September 30, 2017 Recognizadricome Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ — Interest expens $ =
Total $ — $ —
Nine months ended September 30, 2017
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (4) Interest expens $ 4
Total $ (4) $ 4
Three months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (10 Interest expens $ 10
Total $ (10 $ 10
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 24 Interest expens $ (24
Total $ 24 $ (24)

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @amyg’'s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigremtddjualify as hedges of net investments in forejgerations and
that meet the effectiveness requirements, theaies@r losses attributable to changes in spotamgdhrates are
recorded in cumulative translation within other gwehensive income. The remainder of the changalirevof such
instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognitiomaimings of amounts previously recorded in cunugdtanslation is
limited to circumstances such as complete or snbatly complete liquidation of the net investmémthe hedged
foreign operation. To the extent foreign currenepaminated debt is not designated in or is dedatggfrom a net
investment hedge relationship, changes in valubaifportion of foreign currency denominated dal# tb exchange
rate changes are recorded in earnings throughriegirity date.

3M'’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts giesiied in hedges of the Company’s net investmefuraign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulatsd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/ngesued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.

29



At September 30, 2017, the total notional amouribidign exchange forward contracts designatecdktrinvestment
hedges was approximately 250 million Euros and @pprately 248 billion South Korean Won, along wétlprincipal
amount of long-term debt instruments designatatkirinvestment hedges totaling 4.4 billion Eurdse Taturity dates
of these derivative and nonderivative instrumertsighated in net investment hedges range from R02031.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumelgsignated as net investment hedges are as folldwse were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compseleeimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) ;
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Three months ended September 30, 2017 Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (279 N/A $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (9) Cost of sales 1

Total $ (188 $ 1
Nine months ended September 30, 2017
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (5700 N/A $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (36) Cost of sales 6

Total $ (606 $ 6
Three months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (55) N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (14) Costadés —

Total $ (69) $ —
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (105, N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (41) Costadés 1

Total $ (146 $ 1

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

3M enters into foreign exchange forward contralatg &re not designated in hedge relationshipsfsefin part, the
impacts of certain intercompany transactions arfdrtber mitigate short-term currency impacts. didiéion, the
Company enters into commodity price swaps to affsgbart, fluctuations in costs associated with tise of certain
precious metals. These derivative instruments arel@signated in hedging relationships; thereffaie value gains and
losses on these contracts are recorded in earfihgsCompany does not hold or issue derivativenfira instruments
for trading purposes.

The Company revised amounts previously presentdteitable below for the gain (loss) on derivativasognized in
income for the three and nine months ended SepteBih016 relative to foreign currency forward taats. This
immaterial correction decreased the previouslygmesl amount of the gain recognized in income éndilsclosure table
below by $4 million and $22 million for the threrdanine months ended September 30, 2016, resplyctives

revision had no impact on the Company’s consoldiaésults of operations, financial condition, osltélows.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafiesvinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Three months ended September 30, 2017Nine months ended September 30, 2017
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ 3 Cost of sales $ 8
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest espe (67) Interest expense (163
Total $ (64 $ (155

Three months ended September 30, 2016Nine months ended September 30, 2016
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ (1) Cost of sales $ 7)
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest espe 17 Interest expense 41
Total $ 16 $ 34
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Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents

The following tables summarize the fair value of’8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts betewpresented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except inteadstswaps, which are presented using the coniregption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information widspect to the fair value of derivative instrumastisicluded in Note
11.

Gross Assets Liabilities
September 30, 2017 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,215 Other current asset: $ 12  Other current liabilitie  $ 80
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,431 Other assets 24 Other liabilities 52
Interest rate swap contracts 450 Other current asset: —  Other current liabilitie 1
Interest rate swap contracts 1,303 Other assets 22  Other liabilities 2
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 58 $ 135
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 6,414 Other current asset: $ 19 Other current liabilitie  $ 47
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 19 $ 47
Total derivative instruments $ 77 $ 182
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,160 Other current asset: $ 107 Other current liabilitie  $ 9
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,45®ther assets 86 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,953 Other assets 25 Other current liabilitie 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 218 $ 13
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,655 Other current assets $ 41  Other current liabilities $ 82
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 41 $ 82
Total derivative instruments $ 259 $ 95

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmtamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively rnowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoaél banks and financial institutions as countaipgr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieswgessible to mitigate credit risk in derivativarisactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterparhetcettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddhaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of September 30, 2017, 3M has Internati®waps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements with pplecable banks and financial institutions whichntaon netting
provisions. In addition to a master agreement @ihsupported by a primary counterparty’s parentgotee, 3M also
has associated credit support agreements in plakel@ of its primary derivative counterparties woliniamong other
things, provide the circumstances under which ejlagty is required to post eligible collateral gvhthe market value
of transactions covered by these agreements exspedsied thresholds or if a counterparty’s crediing has been
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downgraded to a predetermined rating). The Complaeg not anticipate nonperformance by any of these
counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of derreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative triimsa@re subject to master netting arrangementsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company &ksttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerunsients, netted in accordance with various critieriiie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtdrrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &tiility balances of all derivatives at the endla# reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the tatisns. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicatidees presented below, no collateral had beelvester pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
September 30, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Cabllateral Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 777 $ 34 $ — 3 43
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 77 $ 43
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 259 $ 39 $ — 3 220
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 259 $ 220

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
September 30, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Ca&llateral Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 182 % 34 $ — 3 148
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 182 $ 148
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 93 $ 39 $ — 3 54
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 2 2
Total $ 95 $ 56
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Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencydaation effects, including hedging impacts, desgdgre-tax
income by approximately $34 million and $99 millifar the three and nine months ended Septembe2(3(,
respectively. These estimates include transactdmsgand losses, including derivative instrumeetsighed to reduce
foreign currency exchange rate risks and any ingg@otn swapping Venezuelan bolivars into U.S. dslla

NOTE 11. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyresgth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasured
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an asseair o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadko establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andhmies the use of unobservable inputs by requitliag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obserwapiits are inputs market participants would nseiuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dbtaiwed from sources independent of the Compangbbkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asdiomp about the factors market participants wowld i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The mmais broken
down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quotedgs (unadjusted) in active markets for identasdets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, quoted psibar identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ao¢ active, and inputs (other than quoted pricea &ine observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectlyevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Categorization within the valuation hierarchy iséd upon the lowest level of input that is sigmifitto the fair value
measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faitiéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieavailable-for-sale
marketable securities and certain derivative imsemts. Derivatives include cash flow hedges, ister&te swaps and
net investment hedges. The information in the foihg paragraphs and tables primarily addressesnrsattlative to
these financial assets and liabilities. Separatkebre were no material fair value measurements negpect to
nonfinancial assets or liabilities that are recagdior disclosed at fair value in the Company’aficial statements on a
recurring basis for the three and nine months eS#gdember 30, 2017 and 2016.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which anmgrily based upon the market and income approaghtsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following isl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedHe respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at faius.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munl@paurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAsveighted average
market price is used for these securities. Markieep are obtained for these securities from aetsof industry
standard data providers, security master files fiamge financial institutions, and other third-gasburces. These
multiple prices are used as inputs into a distithniturve-based algorithm to determine the daily\falue to be used.
3M classifies U.S. treasury securities as leveltiile all other marketable securities (excludinga&i@ U.S. municipal
securities) are classified as level 2. Marketablausties are discussed further in Note 7.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — certdis. municipal securities only:

In both 2016 and 2014, 3M obtained municipal banadis the City of Nevada, Missouri, which represe3itg’s only
U.S. municipal securities holding as of Septemifer2®17 and December 31, 2016. Due to the natutd$ecurity,
the valuation method utilized will include the fim@al health of the City of Nevada, any recent roipal bond
issuances by Nevada, and macroeconomic considesatiated to the direction of interest rates &ediealth of the
overall municipal bond market, and as such has blessified as a level 3 security.

34



Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivativeat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commodity price swaps, interatt swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge Blgfsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the heitgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in speign currency exchange rates and not with regpesther factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwardsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign cuyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itiomsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgsimpclude foreign currency exchange rates, \itlasi, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations or models that use, &is basis, readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedpfaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuamstod cash flows model.

The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured avédire on a recurring
basis.

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) September 30, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Commercial paper 446 — 446 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 84 — 84 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 14 — 14 —
Credit card related 29 — 29 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 55 — 55 —
Interest rate swap contracts 22 — 22 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 179 — 179 —
Interest rate swap contracts 3 — 3 —
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Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Commercial paper 14 — 14 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 197 — 197 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 31 — 31 —
Credit card related 18 — 18 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 234 — 234 —
Interest rate swap contracts 25 — 25 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 94 — 94 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measurfait #alue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used saarif unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Three months ended Nine months ended
Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seatties only September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Beginning balance $ 20 $ 18 $ 20 $ 12

Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — — — —
Included in other comprehensive income — — — —
Purchases and issuances — — — 6
Sales and settlements — — — —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — — —
Ending balance $ 20 $ 18 $ 20 $ 18

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the pénicidded
in earnings for securities held at the end of gporting
period — — — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension arstretirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11 in 3@Isrent Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (Wwhipdated 3M’s
2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifdéaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, includingse recognized and
disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basjgeinods subsequent to initial recognition. For 3Mch measurements
of fair value relate primarily to long-lived assetpairments. During the nine months ended Septe®®e2017, the
Company recognized approximately $40 million inddived asset impairments related to its Electremind Energy
business segment, with the complete carrying amoiusiich assets written off and included in opagaihcome results.
There were no material long-lived asset impairméotshe three months ended September 30, 201 Thenithiree and
nine months ended September 30, 2016.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company’s financial instruments include cash @ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaogsvable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiaigd,derivative contracts. The fair values of caghivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and shontlerrowings and current portion of long-term dapproximated
carrying values because of the short-term natuthesfe instruments. Available-for-sale marketablsties, in
addition to certain derivative instruments, areorded at fair values as indicated in the precedisglosures. For its
long-term debt, the Company utilized third-partytps to estimate fair values (classified as leyelrformation with
respect to the carrying amounts and estimated/&dires of these financial instruments follow:

September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 10,828 $ 11336 $ 10,678 $ 11,168

The fair values reflected above consider the tarhtke related debt absent the impacts of derieadivd hedging
activity. The carrying amount of long-term debtereinced above is impacted by certain fixed-to-ftmpinterest rate
swaps that are designated as fair value hedgebyatie designation of fixed rate Eurobond secuwiigsued by the
Company as hedging instruments of the Company’snmestment in its European subsidiaries. ManyMis3fixed-
rate bonds were trading at a premium at Septenthe2®BL7 and December 31, 2016 due to the low isteates and
tightening of 3M’s credit spreads.

NOTE 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imebim numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhi@ United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latgsincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwiertal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, timep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation. Additidriaformation about the Company’s process for disafre and
recording of liabilities and insurance receivabigated to legal proceedings can be found in NétsCbmmitments
and Contingencies” in the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201fpdated
by the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datexy/ M, 2017.

The following sections first describe the signifitéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of September 30, 2017, the Company is a namieshdant, with multiple co-defendants, in numerasduits in
various courts that purport to represent approxetge,330 individual claimants, compared to appmately 2,660
individual claimants with actions pending at Decem®1, 2016.

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims reedlby and currently pending against the Compamgallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products arf damages from the Company and other defendarasiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesttica, coal mine dust, or other occupationatsifiound in
products manufactured by other defendants or gyarahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éclaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdgerdege personal injury from occupational expasto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as produzasiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnjses.
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The Company’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordingly tlumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagrieater percentage of total claims than in #s. @ he Company
has prevailed in all twelve cases taken to triadluding ten of the eleven cases tried to verdiatl trials occurred in
1999, 2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, 2015, andakesctried in 2016 and 2017—described below), arappellate
reversal in 2005 of the 2001 jury verdict adversthe Company. The remaining case, tried in 20@8, dismissed by
the court at the close of plaintiff's evidence, é®n the court’s legal finding that the plaintifid not presented
sufficient evidence to support a jury verdict. lngust 2016, 3M received a unanimous defense vdrdict a jury in
state court in Kentucky, in 3M’s first respiratoiat involving coal mine dust. The estate of thaipliff alleged that the
3M 8710 respirator is defective and caused hishdeatause it did not protect him from harmful coéhe dust. The
jury rejected plaintiff's claim and returned a vietdinding no liability against 3M. The verdict fal as the plaintiff
did not file an appeal. In September 2017, 3M naabia unanimous verdict in its favor from a jurystate court in
Kentucky in 3M’s second respirator trial involviagal mine dust. The jury ultimately determined tttet plaintiff's
claims were barred by the statute of limitationlse Plaintiff filed a motion for a new trial.

The Company has demonstrated in these past toakpdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imteaded circumstances. Consequently the Compelisnves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médmaditions, even if significant, are attributabbethe Company’'s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless the@amy'’s litigation experience indicates that clamhpersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeleebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on agt@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were assdpy medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complain®03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgtooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. Theeaded complaint seeks substantial, but unspecdmupensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegjaedly incurred by the State for worker’'s compdéinssand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers withggational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundamages. The
case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camderin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomoto bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liapikind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the todeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitasibeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitials not probable and estimable at this timeattdition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful aNsry responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimetiaty in this case and the fact that the complaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendanéiee of liability may turn on the law of jointcaeeveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatéedg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivables:

The Company annually conducts a comprehensive fegew of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilitiresonnection
with finalizing and reporting its annual resultsogferations, unless significant changes in tremadew developments
warrant an earlier review. The Company reviewsmeaead historical claims data, including withounitiation, (i) the
number of pending claims filed against the Compdiijythe nature and mix of those claims (i.e., fineportion of
claims asserting usage of the Company’s mask gireder products and alleging exposure to eactsbéstos, silica,
coal or other occupational dusts, and claims pteadse of asbestos-containing products allegedhufaatured by the
Company), (iii) the costs to defend and resolvedpanclaims, and (iv) trends in filing rates anccsts to defend and
resolve claims, (collectively, the “Claims DataAs part of its comprehensive legal review, the Campprovides the
Claims Data to a third party with expertise in detiming the impact of Claims Data on future filitrgnds and costs.
The third party assists the Company in estimatirgcosts to defend and resolve pending and futaims. The
Company uses these estimates to develop its liésaés of probable liability.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmentdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the kessumptions underlying the Company’s accrual, dioly, the number
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of future claims, the nature and mix of those chgithe average cost of defending and resolvingnslaand in
maintaining trial readiness (ii) trial and appedlautcomes, (iii) the law and procedure applicablihese claims, and
(iv) the financial viability of other co-defendardad insurers.

In the first nine months of 2017, the Company mpalgments for legal fees and settlements of $44anitelated to the
respirator mask/asbestos litigation, $10 milliondiich occurred in the third quarter of 2017. AsSefptember 30,
2017, the Company had an accrual for respiratokfasisestos liabilities (excluding Aearo accruafspsb1 million.
This accrual represents the Company’s best estioigtmbable loss and reflects an estimation pefooduture claims
that may be filed against the Company approachiag/ear 2050. The Company cannot estimate the amowupper
end of the range of amounts by which the liabifitsry exceed the accrual the Company has establiswdise of the
(i) inherent difficulty in projecting the number ofaims that have not yet been asserted or thefamnied in which
future claims may be asserted, (ii) the complaie@rly always assert claims against multiple dedatsiwhere the
damages alleged are typically not attributed taviddal defendants so that a defendant’s sharability may turn on
the law of joint and several liability, which caary by state, (iii) the multiple factors descrikauzbve that the Company
considers in estimating its liabilities, and (itfetseveral possible developments described abaventhy occur that
could affect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company’s receivialansurance recoveries related to the respinmask/asbestos
litigation was $4 million. The Company is seekirayerage under the policies of certain insolvent ath@r insurers.
Once those claims for coverage are resolved, tmep@ay will have collected substantially all of iesnaining
insurance coverage for respirator mask/asbestoa<la

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecba@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pas#d the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréatearo
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@dous products, including personal protectionigaent, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respjyrgtotection products.

As of September 30, 2017, Aearo and/or other compdhat previously owned and operated Aearo’sira&sp
business (American Optical Corporation, Warner-LarhbhLC, AO Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot)e named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caartghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator présland seek damages from Aearo and other defenfitaratbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslestitica-related, or other occupational dusts ébumproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenitbrkplace.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company, throughetwro subsidiary, had accruals of $18 million fooguct liabilities
and defense costs related to current and futurecAedated asbestos and silica-related claims. étesbility for legal
costs, as well as for settlements and judgmentsirigntly shared in an informal arrangement amiearo, Cabot,
American Optical Corporation and a subsidiary ofriiéa Lambert and their respective insurers (theytiP&roup”).
Liability is allocated among the parties basedtenrtumber of years each company sold respirataguats under the
“AO Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Digisiof American Optical Corporation and the allegedrs of
exposure of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s sharfethe contingent liability is further limited kyn agreement entered
into between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. agisement provides that, so long as Aearo pagsabmt a
quarterly fee of $100,000, Cabot will retain resgbility and liability for, and indemnify Aearo aiget, any product
liability claims involving exposure to asbestodicsi, or silica products for respirators sold prioduly 11, 1995.
Because of the difficulty in determining how longarticular respirator remains in the stream of garce after being
sold, Aearo and Cabot have applied the agreemenditos arising out of the alleged use of respisatovolving
exposure to asbestos, silica or silica products poi January 1, 1997. With these arrangementtatepAearo’s
potential liability is limited to exposures allegedhave arisen from the use of respirators invigh\@xposure to
asbestos, silica, or silica products on or afteuday 1, 1997. To date, Aearo has elected to paytlarterly fee. Aearo
could potentially be exposed to additional claimsdome part of the pre-July 11, 1995 period cavéseits agreement
with Cabot if Aearo elects to discontinue its pap@tion in this arrangement, or if Cabot is nogenable to meet its
obligations in these matters.
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In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot Qatjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratined liability for coal workers’ pneumocongslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 204cturt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgnentwo
claims, but declined to rule on two issues: thejdiability for certain known coal mine dustiauits; and Cabot's
claim for allocation of liability between injuriedlegedly caused by exposure to coal mine dusirgades allegedly
caused by exposure to silica dust. Following addil discovery, the parties filed new motions famsnary judgment.
In February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearothese two remaining issues, and ordered thadtCand not
Aearo, is solely responsible for all liability fidre coal mine dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreerireMay 2017, the
Massachusetts Court of Appeals affirmed the taalrtorder in favor of Aearo.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérofiAearo’s liabilities. These developments inieubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal sosf defending these claims, (iv) significant chesign the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appellaaécomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aratpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tadility allocation among the co-defendants, (Miig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or &xjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflitipis inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these gatefgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeast'are of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfiy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataeims could be significantly larger than the amioaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assdahedomplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amoing tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsntigst may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab#l#tj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @r@@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgvs and regulations including those pertairimgir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and titihg and disposal of solid and hazardous wastéseable by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States@mwad. These laws
and regulations provide, under certain circumstanadoasis for the remediation of contaminationydstoration of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedpamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs anditd@xpenditures in complying with these laws aaglulations,
defending personal injury and property damage cdaand modifying its business operations in lights
environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisfy its environmental responsibilities and compligh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establighetiperiodically updates, policies relating to emwimental
standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including the tddiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsep&usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgfty with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former facilitéesd at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustions, most of which are in the United States, lictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivabldsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatilptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal

(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Ager{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleéremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoumaspding perfluorooctanyl compounds such as perfioctanoate
(“PFOA"), perfluorooctane sulfonate (“PFOS”), omsiar compounds (“PFCs”). As a result of its phasg-decision in
May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures pandloctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
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using the vast majority of these compounds witlmipraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaend ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehig themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisipsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative riete the Company continues to control or eliméntdte presence of
certain PFCs in purchased materials or as bypredocome of 3M’s fluorochemical manufacturing Eeses,
products, and waste streams.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlagiek before
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,asgessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. As theldesta of studies of both PFOA and PFOS has expatite®PA has
developed human health effects documents summaitizenavailable data from these studies. In Fegr2at4, the
EPA initiated external peer review of its draft ramhealth effects documents for PFOA and PFOS pEkereview
panel met in August 2014. In May 2016, the EPA amoed lifetime health advisory levels for PFOA &1€0S at 70
parts per trillion (ppt) (superseding the provisiblevels established by the EPA in 2009 of 400fppPFOA and 200
ppt for PFOS). Where PFOA and PFOS are found tegeBPA recommends that the concentrations be addether,
and the lifetime health advisory for PFOA and PR@8ibined is also 70 ppt. Lifetime health advisgrigsile not
enforceable, serve as guidance and are benchnuarédetermining if concentrations of chemicals ip teater from
public utilities are safe for public consumption.dn effort to collect exposure information unde¥ Safe Drinking
Water Act, the EPA published on May 2, 2012 adfstinregulated substances, including six PFCs,ireddo be
monitored during the period 2013-2015 by publicewatystem suppliers to determine the extent of theiurrence.
Through January 2017, the EPA reported resultd 820 public water supplies nationwide. Based el 6 lifetime
health advisory, 13 public water supplies exceeddhiel for PFOA and 46 exceed the level for PF@®lfanged from
the July 2016 EPA summary). A technical advisosyéx by EPA in September 2016 on laboratory arsabfsilrinking
water samples stated that 65 public water suppbeisexceeded the combined level for PFOA and PFR@&se results
are based on one or more samples collected duvingdriod 2012-2015 and do not necessarily refigcent
conditions of these public water supplies. EPA répg does not identify the sources of the PFOA BROS in the
public water supplies.

The Company is continuing to make progress in askwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufaturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s matwiag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant sluaiggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilifter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pr@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subsetjgroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothet plan continues and is expected to be congpiat2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlufion Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terofghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreenaaidt Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@fs in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irshifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) & the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMnnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'jpat
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of@@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotisssic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idgig any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\WBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemica drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of
Health (MDH) to be safe for human consumption avéfetime) for certain PFCs for which a HBV andHRL exists
as a result of contamination from these site9;r@imediating identified sources of other PFChas¢ sites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiggssformal decisions adopting remedial optionglierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota (@aékand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issaddrmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compai@ottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #peging and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
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3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdadeisitate 2010. At each location the remedial oxgtiovere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MIRE/kediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational teaance mode. Remediation will continue at theag@ttGrove site
during 2017.

In August 2014, the Illinois EPA approved a requssthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, Illinois, whidhcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwajroundwater
monitoring, and routine reporting of results.

In May 2017, the MDH issued new HBVs for PFOS aR®R. The new HBVs are 35 ppt for PFOA and 27 ppt fo
PFOS. In connection with its announcement, the Mibdtied that “Drinking water with PFOA and PFOS, reaethe
levels above the updated values, does not reprasgénimediate health risk. These values are degigneeduce long-
term health risks across the population and arecbas multiple safety factors to protect the masgherable citizens,
which makes them overprotective for most of thédesss in our state.”

The Company cannot predict what additional regueaations arising from the foregoing proceedingd activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgeguences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee filedugported class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the St. John case), seeking wtstidmages and alleging that the plaintiffs sufféear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagerfrexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or tleaiCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The canrg005 granted the Company’s motion to dismissrthmed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the exclusprityisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifistinsel filed an amended complaint in November 2061ing the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantsyding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wislsteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamajadliecatur
Utilities.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmatdiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Coutlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive danmagelsing alleged damage to their property from ssions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the ComgfsaDecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the Chandler caaelegl the Company’s motion to abate the case,teffde putting
the case on hold pending the resolution of clagffication issues in the St. John case. Despitesthy, plaintiffs filed
an amended complaint seeking damages for allegasdie injuries and property damage on behalf efthmed
plaintiffs and the members of a purported classfuiher action in the case is expected unlesauatitithe stay is
lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal¥ima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the Stover case) seeking compengatamages and injunctive relief based on theiegin by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagter treatment sludge to farmland and grasslarithe state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbals. The named plaintiff seeks to representasaschf all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasatéposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supr&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklinor®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its dilimg of the other matters, the Morgan County Gir@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resohuttbthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&ever Authority (Water Authority) filed an individl
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andkiaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftme Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepresentative plaintiffs who brought the complaintehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and possestproperty who use water provided by the Watetharity and five
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local water works to which the Water Authority slipg water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).lie complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctiief lzased on allegations that the defendants’ ¢bais) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&etatur, have contaminated the water in the Tese@eRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals canno¢fm®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetids\Water
Authority. In September 2016, the court granted 8Mbotion to dismiss plaintiffs’ trespass claimshaprejudice,
negligence claims for personal injuries, and pavatisance claims, and denied the motion to disthesglaintiffs’
negligence claims for property damage, public mésaabatement of nuisance, battery and wantonness.

In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. ((k&eper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsnithe U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of Alabama agai@; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Dacaflabama;
and the Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morg@ounty, Alabama. The complaint alleges that #ferntdants
violated the Resource Conservation and Recoverynd@bnnection with the disposal of certain PFGsulgh their
ownership and operation of their respective sité® complaint further alleges such practices magegmt an imminent
and substantial endangerment to health and/onthieomment and that Riverkeeper has suffered aficcamtinue to
suffer irreparable harm caused by defendants’'raila abate the endangerment unless the courtsgitatequested
relief, including declaratory and injunctive relidfhe Company believes that the complaint lackdtmer

In July 2016, the City of Lake Elmo filed a lawstunitthe U.S. District Court for the District of Miesota against 3M
alleging that the City suffered damages from drigkivater supplies contaminated with PFCs, includiogts to
construct alternative sources of drinking waterallis scheduled to begin in January 2019.

In September 2016, the Water Works and Sewer Bwiatte City of Gadsden, Alabama filed a lawsuitha Circuit
Court of Etowah County Alabama against 3M and vagicarpet manufacturers. The complaint allegesRRéats from
the defendants’ facilities contaminated the CooseRas its raw water source for drinking water apdks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafion system, expenses to monitor PFC levels]astdrofits and
sales.

In November 2016, the Town of Barnstable, Massaettsifiled an individual action in the U.S. Distr@ourt for the
District of Massachusetts seeking unstated compernysand punitive damages and other relief aga@isand other
suppliers of AFFF for alleged contamination of #uwpiifer supplying drinking water to the Hyannis eratystem. The
town seeks to recover costs associated with trestigation, treatment, remediation, and monitodhdrinking water
supplies allegedly contaminated with certain PF&=dun AFFF. In January 2017, the County of Babista
Massachusetts, filed an individual action in th& \District Court for the District of Massachusetteking unstated
compensatory and punitive damages and other fglidfiding indemnification and contribution in cawgtion with
claims asserted against the County by the Townaofi@able) against 3M and other suppliers of AF#tFafieged
contamination of the aquifer supplying drinking &ato the Hyannis water system.

In January 2017, several hundred plaintiffs sued iBvsubsidiary Dyneon, and Daikin American in lremnce and
Morgan Counties, Alabama. The plaintiffs are owrdrgroperty, residents, and holders of propertgrigsts who
receive their water from the West Morgan-East LanveeWater and Sewer Authority (Authority). Theyeasgsommon
law claims for negligence, nuisance, trespass, avergss, and battery, and they seek injunctivefratfid punitive
damages. The plaintiffs contend that the defendamtsand operate manufacturing and disposal feslin Decatur
that have released and continue to release PFOBSRIAd related chemicals into the groundwater arfdce water of
their sites, resulting in discharge into the TeseesRiver. The plaintiffs also contend that theeddénts have
discharged into Bakers Creek and the Decatur igslibry Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant, whiclwin,
discharges wastewater containing these chemidalghie Tennessee River. The plaintiffs contend, st result the
alleged discharges, the water supplied by the Aitthto the plaintiffs was, and is, contaminatedhW?FOA, PFOS,
and related chemicals at a level dangerous to hsiman

In May 2017, the Water Works and Sewer Board ofTtben of Centre, Alabama filed a lawsuit in thed@it Court of
Cherokee County Alabama against 3M, DuPont, anidwsicarpet and textile manufacturers. The compkdiages that
PFCs from the defendants’ facilities contaminatezlitbwn’s raw water source for drinking water aadks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafibn system, expenses to monitor PFC levels pladits and sales,
and injunctive relief.
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As of September 30, 2017, eleven purported clagsnachave been filed against 3M and other defetsdarfederal or
state courts - three in federal court in Colorddar in federal court in Pennsylvania, and foustate court in New
York. An individual complaint also has been filedthe federal court in Pennsylvania. The complaseek unstated
damages and other remedies, such as medical mingitand allege that the plaintiffs suffered peedanjury and
property damage from drinking water supplies comated with certain PFCs used in Aqueous Film Foghoam
(AFFF) at current or former airports and air foraititary bases located in Colorado, Pennsylvanial, [dew York.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAty General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, filéawsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBBst to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costeeasdnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydstruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé.iaibdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaav
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence w#pect to the presence of PFCs in the groundveatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaitV. The State also seeks declarations under MERiat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may sufferdarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraleases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfiador compensation for future loss or destructid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filednation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratongguitable relief, including reasonable attorhégess, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’s PR@i&harges to the Mississippi River, including it&tallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based exesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymstaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thebtota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aequitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri##®rdid not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’s complaint aifebfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropoli@ouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural laanttlocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comiplaagainst the
Metropolitan Council asked that if the court firttiat the State is entitled to any of the damagsstight, 3M be
awarded contribution and apportionment from therbfatlitan Council, including attorneys’ fees, und#ERLA, and
contribution from and liability for the MetropolitaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awardetié State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamdmon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeege. 3M
also sought declaratory relief under MERA. In M&4.2, the Metropolitan Council paid 3M approximat®lly million
and agreed to dismiss its claims against 3M. Asqfahe settlement agreement, 3M agreed to disitsisdaims against
the Metropolitan Council.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgiP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motioniggdalify Covington as counsel to the State, aedState and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatioriite Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, themédsota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualificat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveiaguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octol#dr52 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against reprasgaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialpted matter where that person’s interests arermaliyeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district cpunowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogian because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the cashich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificaissne, has resumed. Trial of the NRD Lawsuit isedeited to begin in
February 2018. In a separate but related actienCttmpany filed suit in the Ramsey County Dist@ourt against
Covington for breach of its fiduciary duties to @empany and for breach of contract arising ou€avington’s
representation of the State of Minnesota in the NRI¥suit. In September 2016, the court granted 3fliion for
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leave to amend the complaint to plead punitive dgsaln February 2017, Covington settled this lawusith a
payment by Covington or its insurer to 3M thatds material to 3M’s results of operations or finehcondition.

For environmental litigation matters describedhiis section for which a liability, if any, has bemtorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of steblished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated rtssail operations or financial condition. For thasatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company bekeany such liability is not probable and estimaivid the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of September 30, 2017, the Company had recdialeitities of $38 million for estimated “environmtal
remediation” costs based upon an evaluation ofoty available facts with respect to each indigidsite and also
recorded related insurance receivables of $8 millidhe Company records liabilities for remediatimsts on an
undiscounted basis when they are probable andmabloestimable, generally no later than the cotigiieof

feasibility studies or the Company’s commitmenatplan of action. Liabilities for estimated costenvironmental
remediation, depending on the site, are based ghymgoon internal or third-party environmental dies, and estimates
as to the number, participation level and finaneiability of any other potentially responsible pes, the extent of the
contamination and the nature of required remeditbas. The Company adjusts recorded liabilitiefuather
information develops or circumstances change. Téragany expects that it will pay the amounts recormleer the
periods of remediation for the applicable sitesremtly ranging up to 20 years.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company had recdiaeitities of $27 million for “other environmentéibbilities”
based upon an evaluation of currently availabléesfaximplement the Settlement Agreement and Cdr@sder with
the MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADEN¥ to address trace amounts of perfluorinated comgts in
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mieata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwahthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafia, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Almebdbury). The Company expects that most of thadipg will
occur over the next four years. During the firsager of 2017, the Company collected from its iesthe outstanding
receivable of $15 million related to “other envirental liabilities.”

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the uncergsmtegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emrnental laws and regulations, the extent of envirental
contamination and the existence of alternativentipanethods. Developments may occur that coula e
Company’s current assessment, including, but natdd to: (i) changes in the information availat#garding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiorss groducts; (i) changes in environmental regulaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theangpolicies,
including efforts to recover natural resource da@sagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;
(iv) success in allocating liability to other potiafly responsible parties; and (v) the financielhbility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimhitors. For sites included in both “environmemngahediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesdt which remediation activity is largely compleied remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation rwoirig, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in exceggeaimount accrued would not be material to the [@2oy's
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon. However, for locations at which remediataxctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibtedosange of loss in excess of the associateblesttad accruals
for the reasons described above.
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Other Matters
Department of Labor Investigation

The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) notified 3M ipid 2015 that it had commenced an investigatioBidfs
pension plan pursuant to the federal Employee &atint Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (BRIBhe DOL
has stated its investigation relates to certaivapei equity investments, plan expenses, seculémeing, and
distributions of plan benefits. In response toaierDOL requests, 3M produced documents and magogaes
available for interviews. In December 2016, the Di€dued certain subpoenas to 3M and 3M Investmeamagement
Corp. relating to this investigation. 3M has proeld@dditional responsive documents and is coopegratith the DOL
in its investigation. 3M anticipates that the DOILlwonclude its investigation in the first half 2018.

Product Liability Litigation

One customer obtained an order in the French cagesist 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidiamypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroencial loss and property damage allegedly caugediégedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantufeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this samstomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austrizourts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sane iBa Company reached an agreement in princigettte those
two cases and finalized the settlement during ¢loersd quarter of 2017. The amounts agreed to im efihiese
settlements were not material to the Company’s @adated results of operations or financial coraditi

As of September 30, 2017, the Company is a namieshdant in lawsuits involving approximately 3,83Qiptiffs
(compared to approximately 1,260 plaintiffs at Daber 31, 2016), most of which are pending in federatate court
in Minnesota, in which the plaintiffs claim theyderwent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovascudenq other surgeries
and later developed surgical site infections dui¢ouse of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming sysfEne complaints
seek damages and other relief based on theorgsdfliability, negligence, breach of express anglied warranties,
failure to warn, design and manufacturing defeetidulent and/or negligent misrepresentation/cdneeat, unjust
enrichment, and violations of various state consunaeid, deceptive or unlawful trade practices anédlse advertising
acts. One case, from the U.S. District Court fer\Western District of Tennessee is a putative naiide class action.
The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict LitigatigDL) granted the plaintiffs’ motion to transfemd consolidate all
cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. DisBaurt for the District of Minnesota to be managed multi-district
proceeding during the pre-trial phase of the liiiga The federal court has set a trial-ready datbe second quarter of
2018 for the two federal court bellwether cases parties are negotiating a trial date for the iiaimg state court
bellwether candidate. In June 2016, the Companyseasd with a putative class action filed in th&adio Superior
Court of Justice for all Canadian residents whoeunent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovascudeng other surgeries
and later developed surgical site infections duthéouse of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming sysfEne
representative plaintiff seeks relief (includinghiive damages) under Canadian law based on tteesiriglar to those
asserted in the MDL. The Bair Hugger™ product livees acquired by 3M as part of the 2010 acquisibibArizant,

Inc., a leading manufacturer of patient warmingisohs designed to prevent hypothermia and maimarmal body
temperature in surgical settings. No liability feen recorded for this matter because the Compeligvbs that any
such liability is not probable and estimable as titine.

In September 2011, 3M Oral Care launched Lava @iEnCAD/CAM dental restorative material. The praduas
originally indicated for inlay, onlay, veneer, atrwn applications. In June 2015, 3M Oral Care ntduly removed
crown applications from the product’s instructidosuse, following reports from dentists of pat&Ertrowns
debonding, requiring additional treatment. The pidemains on the market for other applicatiohd.ce mmunicated
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as vealregulators outside the United States. 3M alwred
customers and distributors of its action, offeeadcept return of unused materials and provideosf. As of
September 30, 2017, there are two lawsuits perttisigwere brought by dentists and dental pracagasnst 3M. The
complaints allege 3M marketed and sold defectiveallditimate material used for dental crowns to tésiand, under
various theories, seek monetary damages (replad¢erosts and business reputation loss), punitiveadgs,
disgorgement of profits, injunction from marketiagd selling Lava Ultimate for use in dental crowstatutory
penalties, and attorneys’ fees and costs. One igy&mnding in the U.S. District Court for the Dist of Minnesota, is a
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class action that names 39 plaintiffs and seekgfication of a class of dentists in the Unitedt8&and its territories,
and alternatively seeks subclasses in 13 statesoffter lawsuit is an individual complaint agaikt in Madison
County, lllinois.

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been reted, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tdbpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of trebéshed accruals at
this time.

NOTE 13. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), ascdssed in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Mag017
(which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form I)Qy€ovides for the issuance or delivery of up 23,865,000
shares of 3M common stock pursuant to awards gtamder the plan. Awards may be issued in the fmrmcentive
stock options, nonqualified stock options, progresstock options, stock appreciation rights, iet#d stock, restricted
stock units, other stock awards, and performands and performance shardhe remaining total shares available for
grant under the LTIP Program are 30,232,906 agpfesnber 30, 2017.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide arggrand
immediate link between the performance of individuwduring the preceding year and the size of teftual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateoénting rules
require recognition of expense under a non-subigtamesting period approach, requiring the fullagaition of
compensation expense by the date an employegiblelto retire if awards become fully vested upetirement. Under
the LTIP, 3M employees are considered eligiblestoe at age 55 and after having completed tensyafaservice. This
retiree-eligible population represents 35 percétih® 2017 annual grant stock-based compensatianch@xpense
dollars; therefore, higher stock-based compensatipense is recognized in the first quarter of decial year.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash segsigitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the issaiafcommon stock and are considered immaterigth&yCompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wagpect to stock-based compensation programshvimitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umitsformance shares and the General Employees’ $toahase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were retialeor the
three and nine months ended September 30, 201204t

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Cost of sales $ 9 % 8 9 41 $ 39
Selling, general and administrative expenses 45 36 186 166
Research, development and related expenses 6 7 39 39
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 60 $ 51 $ 266 $ 244
Income tax benefits $ (35) $ (49) $ (257 $ (248
Stock-based compensation expenses (benefits)f teet o $ 25 $ 2 3 9 $ (4)
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Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acgindtiring the nine months ended September 30, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Exercise Price Life (months)  (millions)
Under option —
January 1 36,196,232 $ 112.07
Granted:
Annual 5,409,62¢ 175.93
Exercised (5,203,405) 90.05
Canceled (137,827 161.38
September 30 36,264,628 $ 124.57 72 $ 3,095
Options exercisable
September 30 25,532,812 $ 107.67 59 §$ 2,610

Stock options vest over a period from one yeahted years with the expiration date at 10 yeans flate of grant. As
of September 30, 2017, there was $85 million of gensation expense that has yet to be recognizatkdeio non-
vested stock option based awards. This expens@eécted to be recognized over the remaining weijhterage
vesting period of 22 months. The total intrinsitues of stock options exercised were $526 millind §573 million
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012616, respectively. Cash received from optionsesed was
$468 million and $630 million for the nine montheded September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectivelyCbngpany’s
actual tax benefits realized for the tax deducti@tated to the exercise of employee stock opteere $179 million
and $212 million for the nine months ended SepterBBe2017 and 2016, respectively.

For the primary 2017 annual stock option grantyteéhted average fair value at the date of graad @alculated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the agstions that follow.

Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2017
Exercise price $ 175.76
Risk-free interest rate 2.1%
Dividend yield 2.5%
Expected volatility 17.3%
Expected life (months) 78
Black-Scholes fair value $ 23.51

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimount by which a stock price is expected to €flat# during a period.
For the 2017 annual grant date, the Company egithe expected volatility based upon the averdgfgeamost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of ewpected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of
the expected life volatility of 3M stock, and thmaglied volatility on the grant date. The expectiésl dssumption is
based on the weighted average of historical grants.
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eewdricted stock unit activity during the nine rttumended
September 30, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—
As of January 1 2,185,04¢ $ 145.64
Granted
Annual 604,256 176.10
Other 2,986 179.64
Vested (761,484 126.78
Forfeited (39,352) 157.63
As of September 30 1,991,452 $ 161.90

As of September 30, 2017, there was $93 millionarhpensation expense that has yet to be recogrefed to non-
vested restricted stock units and restricted stbhis expense is expected to be recognized oveethaining weighted-
average vesting period of 22 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock units and restrictedlsthat vested during
the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2848485 million and $145 million, respectively. TBempany’s
actual tax benefits realized for the tax deducti@tated to the vesting of restricted stock unitd eestricted stock was
$44 million and $54 million for the nine months eddSeptember 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tigezgs following the grant date assuming continemegloyment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stakia®n these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d@@idends are paid out in cash at the vest dateesimicted stock units.
Since the rights to dividends are forfeitable, ¢hisrno impact on basic earnings per share caicokatWeighted
average restricted stock unit shares outstandmgnatuded in the computation of diluted earnings ghare.

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membésefecutive
management. The 2017 performance criteria for thes®rmance shares (organic volume growth, retarmvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earninggbare growth) were selected because the Compédirydxethat they
are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thaldcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®d may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachoperdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Coyngaring such performance period. Non-substanteging
requires that expense for the performance sharescognized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. The 2017 perforceashare grant accrues dividends, therefore tra dgate fair
value is equal to the closing stock price on the @ grant. Since the rights to dividends aredable, there is no
impact on basic earnings per share calculationsghél average performance shares whose perfornpeenicedl is
complete are included in computation of dilutecheags per share.
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The following table summarizes performance shatieigcduring the nine months ended September 80,72

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 656,278 $ 142.98
Granted 198,910 190.84
Distributed (313,942 124.88
Performance change 107,034 173.58
Forfeited (10,769 169.38

As of September 30 637,511 $ 17152

As of September 30, 2017, there was $36 milliooahpensation expense that has yet to be recogreiadd to
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averageimgsmperiod of
10 months. The total fair values of performanceehéhat were distributed were $55 million and #%Hion for the
nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 201&atésgy. The Company’s actual tax benefits reaifar the tax
deductions related to the distribution of perforceehares were $15 million for both the nine moetided
September 30, 2017 and 2016.
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NOTE 14. Business Segments

3M'’s businesses are organized, managed and iniegraliped into segments based on differences kets
products, technologies and services. 3M managepéstions in five business segments: Industsafety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@adsumer. 3M’s five business segments bring togeitieamon or
related 3M technologies, enhancing the developmkinnovative products and services and providogefficient
sharing of business resources. Transactions anamagtable segments are recorded at cost. 3M istegrated
enterprise characterized by substantial intersego@aperation, cost allocations and inventory tfarss Therefore,
management does not represent that these segifiepe;ated independently, would report the opatpihcome
information shown. The difference between operaititgme and pre-tax income relates to interestrimecand interest
expense, which are not allocated to business segmen

Effective in the first quarter of 2017, as parBM’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around
markets and customers the Company made the folipahianges:

1. Integrated the former Renewable Energy Division eisting divisions;

2. Combined two divisions to form the Automotive andréspace Solutions Division; and

3. Consolidated U.S. customer account activity - intipgedual credit reporting

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
* The (i) solar and wind and (ii) energy product $iffalong with certain technology previously incldde

Corporate and Unallocated) of the former Renewgblergy Division (RED) were integrated into the érig
Electrical Markets Division and Electronics Matégi&olutions Division, respectively, within the Efonics
and Energy business segment. In addition, the foRE®’s window film product lines were moved intwet
Commercial Solutions Division within the Safety @@daphics business segment. This change resulid in
decrease in previously reported net sales and tipgiacome for total year 2016 of $203 million a$8i8
million, respectively, in the Electronics and Enesggment. These decreases were offset by a $20hmaind
$29 million increase in previously reported totahy 2016 net sales and operating income, respBetinehe
Safety and Graphics business segment and a $émilécrease and $9 million increase in previoushprted
net sales and operating income, respectively, ip@ate and Unallocated.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Biein
e The former Automotive Division and Aerospace anan@uercial Transportation Division (both within the
Industrial business segment) were combined to etbat Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Division.
Because this realignment was within the Indusbiainess segment, it had no impact on businessesggm
reporting.

Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting
* The Company consolidated its customer accountigctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales disrio

better serve customers. As discussed further béMahusiness segment reporting measures include dua
credit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated operating income. This dual credibiseldl on
which business segment provides customer accotiwita¢‘sales district”) with respect to a partiem product
sold in the U.S. Previously, a customer in the th8y have been aligned to several sales distréstscéated
with multiple divisions or segments based on tltiviidual products the customer purchased across 3M’
portfolio. The alignment of U.S. customer accountfewer, more focused sales districts therefoengkd the
attribution of dual credit across 3M’s businessnsents. As a result, previously reported aggregasiniess
segment net sales and operating income for total 3@16 increased $163 million and $36 million,
respectively, offset by similar increases in theglation of dual credit net sales and operatirgpime
amounts.

The financial information presented herein reflebtsimpact of the preceding business segmenttiagathanges for
all periods presented.
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Business Segment Information

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net Sales
Industrial $ 2764 $ 2603 $ 8,193 $ 7,856
Safety and Graphics 1,529 1,500 4,603 4,538
Health Care 1,476 1,371 4,339 4,176
Electronics and Energy 1,414 1,250 3,838 3,468
Consumer 1,236 1,210 3,415 3,390
Corporate and Unallocated 1 2 5 5
Elimination of Dual Credit (248 (227 (726 (653
Total Company $ 8,172 $ 7,709 $ 23,667 $ 22,780
Operating Income
Industrial $ 614 $ 595 $ 1,762 $ 1,837
Safety and Graphics 410 372 1,661 1,152
Health Care 471 431 1,317 1,350
Electronics and Energy 394 304 920 716
Consumer 307 317 724 836
Corporate and Unallocated (100) (65) (225) (189)
Elimination of Dual Credit (55) (50) (160 (144
Total Company $ 2041 $ 1904 $ 5999 $ 5,558

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpdratestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains ané$os®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjrcéitigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelseand certain under- or over-absorbed costsfertsion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may choode atbcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itéhis,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fifétbusiness segments based on net sales andiogenzome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a reaM reflects
additional (“dual”) credit to another business segtmwhen the customer account activity (“salegidis} with respect
to the particular product sold to the external cosr in the U.S. is provided by a different businesgment. This
additional dual credit is largely reflected at theision level. For example, certain respirators primarily sold by the
Personal Safety Division within the Safety and Giep business segment; however, a sales distribtnuthe Industrial
business segment provides the contact for saldeeqfroduct to particular customers in the U.S.ketadn this
example, the non-primary selling segment (Indugtwauld also receive credit for the associatedsadts initiated
though its sales district and the related approtérgerating income. The assigned operating ina@faged to dual
credit activity may differ from operating incomeathwould result from actual costs associated withssales. The
offset to the dual credit business segment reppitimeflected as a reconciling item entitled “Bhation of Dual
Credit,” such that sales and operating incomeHerd.S. in total are unchanged.

Certain sales and operating income results fotreleic bonding product lines are equally dividedwsen the
Electronics and Energy business segment and thestiia business segment.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM*

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of 3nh@any:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheevf 3M Company and its subsidiarias of September
30, 2017, and the related consolidated stateméimisame and comprehensive income for the threetimand nine-
month periods ended September 30, 2017 and 201tharmbnsolidated statements of cash flows fonthe-month
periods ended September 30, 2017 and 2016. Theseririinancial statements are the responsibilitthe Company’s
management.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting Oversighagla/United
States). A review of interim financial informaticonsists principally of applying analytical proceels and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial andounting matters. It is substantially less ipgcthan an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of tidid>Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt8s), the
objective of which is the expression of an opiniegarding the financial statements taken as a whateordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawyipg
consolidated interim financial statements for therbe in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in
the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadisl of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8q&nited
States), the consolidatbadlance sheet as of December 31, 2016, and thedalansolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and d¢awsis for the year then ended (not presented herein)iraadr
report dated February 9, 2017, except with resfpeatir opinion on the consolidated financial statata insofar as it
relates to the business segment reporting changessded in Notes 3 and 16 as to which the daais4, 2017, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congelitiinancial statements. In our opinion, the infation set forth in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet infaymas of December 31, 2016, is fairly statedlimeaterial
respects in relation to the consolidated balaneetsihom which it has been derived.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 31, 2017

* Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act 839'Act”) this should not be considered a “repasithin the
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act and thepeddent registered public accounting firm liapilinder
Section 11 does not extend to it.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desdrto
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements waitharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment

» Financial Condition and Liquidity

e Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affegture Results

Forward-looking statements in Part |, ltem 2 mayolie risks and uncertainties that could causeltesudiffer
materially from those projected (refer to the satntitled “Cautionary Note Concerning FactorstTay Affect
Future Results” in Part |, Item 2 and the risk dastprovided in Part I, Item 1A for discussiontlése risks and
uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
As described in 3M’s Quarterly Reports on Form 1@fxthe periods ended March 31, 2017 and Jun2@D7, and
also in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Mag@17 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report omfr&0-K),
effective in the first quarter of 2017, the Compahgnged its business segment reporting in itsrooed effort to
improve the alignment of businesses around magketscustomers. These changes included the integratithe
former Renewable Energy Division into existing dighs, the combination of two divisions to form thatomotive and
Aerospace Solutions Division, and consolidatiotJd8. customer account activity, impacting dual drezporting.
Business segment information presented hereincteftbe impact of these changes for all periodsemed. Refer to
Note 14 for additional detail. This quarterly reppon Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction whita Company’s
consolidated statements and notes included inutse@t Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017.

3M manages its operations in five operating busisegments: Industrial; Safety and Graphics; Hezédite;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gebargerspective, any references to EMEA referdmie,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shaxdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for the three m@athd nine months
ended September 30, 2017 compared to 2016.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(Earnings per diluted share) September 30, 2017 September 30, 2017
Same period last year $ 215 $ 6.28

Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezlto:

Organic growth/productivity 0.23 0.53
Foreign exchange impacts (0.03) (0.12)
Income tax rate 0.01 0.21
Shares of common stock outstanding/net interest 0.02 0.08
Divestiture gains — 0.56
Operating loss/(income) from divested businesses 0.01 —
Incremental strategic investments (0.06 (0.46
Current period $ 233 $ 7.08

Earnings per diluted share increased 18 cents.4gpécent) and 80 cents (or 12.7 percent) intilnd guarter and first
nine months of 2017, respectively, when compargtiegsame periods last year. Organic growth/pradticincludes
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benefits from higher organic local-currency satasy material cost decreases, and business trareiormwhich is
having a positive impact on 3M’s productivity efferThese benefits were partially offset by higthefined benefit
pension expenses. During both the third quarterfisstcthine months of 2017, organic growth was phienary driver for
the year-on-year benefit.

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $29 million &i®8 million
year-on-year in the third quarter and first ninenths of 2017, respectively, excluding the impadogign currency
changes on tax rates. This is equivalent to a gaayear decrease of 3 cents and 12 cents perdidhi@re for the third
quarter and first nine months of 2017, respectively

The effective income tax rate was 28.3 percertiénthird quarter of 2017, a decrease of 0.2 peagenpoints versus
last year’s third quarter, and 26.1 percent infifs¢ nine months of 2017, a decline of 2.2 peragatpoints versus last
year’s first nine months. The third quarter andtfitine months 2017 change in tax rate was driyes tumber of
factors as referenced in Note 6.

Lower shares outstanding, partially offset by highterest expense, increased earnings per shasighi®d-average
diluted shares outstanding in the third quarterfarstinine months of 2017 declined 1.0 percent Aiddpercent year-
on-year, respectively, which benefited earningsgbare. The decrease in the outstanding weightechge diluted
shares relates to the Company’s purchase of $30nmand $1.6 billion of its own stock in the tiguarter and first
nine months of 2017, respectively. Higher net deexpense was largely due to higher U.S. avetegebalances and
higher interest rates.

The third quarter and first nine months of 2017 headr-on-year operating income impacts from thi¥ahg
divestitures: Polyfoam and the remaining portiothef library system business (both in first qua2@t6), protective
films business and cathode battery technologyioatite business (both in fourth quarter 2016),qpigtson safety
eyewear business (January 2017), and identity nesmext business and tolling and automated licenséauplate
recognition business (both in the second quart@0af7).

There was no incremental gain on divestiture imgacing the third quarter of 2017. The pre-tax afiag income
increase during the first nine months of 2017 wazaximately $450 million year-on-year, which isua@lent to a
year-on-year increase of 56 cents per diluted sfhargely related to the identify management busshe

Divestiture lost operating loss/(income) impacthjch are measured for the first twelve months p@stsaction,
increased pre-tax earnings by approximately $10amibind decreased pre-tax earnings by approxim&imillion for
the third quarter and first nine months of 201 8pextively.

Operating income results include year-on-year imenatal strategic investments that decreased prea@aings by
approximately $48 million and $362 million in tHard quarter and first nine months of 2017, respebt. These
incremental strategic investments are comprise@Mi$ investments in growth initiatives and optintipa of its
portfolio and supply chain footprint. Additionalsgiussion on strategic investments is provided laittin “Divestitures
and Strategic Investments” and also within the tlRe=f Operations” section.
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Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatimgme results by business segment for the threehw@mid nine
months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016. In edddithe discussion below, refer to the sectiditled
“Performance by Business Segment” later in MD&A #omore detailed discussion of the sales and dpgraicome
results of the Company and its respective busisegments (including Corporate and Unallocated)eRef Note 14 for
additional information on business segments, irinlyié&limination of Dual Credit. Further discussioithe Company’s
operating income results is in the section entit@derating Income” within the “Results of Operaisj section.

Three months ended September 30,

2017 2016 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 2764 $ 614 $ 2,603 $ 595 6.2% 3.1%
Safety and Graphics 1,529 410 1,500 372 1.9% 10.5%
Health Care 1,476 471 1,371 431 7.7% 9.3%
Electronics and Energy 1,414 394 1,250 304 13.1% 29.9%
Consumer 1,236 307 1,210 317 2.2% (3.2%
Corporate and Unallocated 1 (100) 2 (65) —
Elimination of Dual Credit (248 (55 (227 (50) —
Total Company $ 8172 $ 2,041 $ 7,709 $ 1,904 6.0% 7.2%

Three months ended September 30, 2017
Organic

Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Divestitures Transtati change
Industrial 6.1% (0.6% 0.7% 6.2%
Safety and Graphics 6.0 (4.9) 0.8 1.9
Health Care 6.9 — 0.8 7.7
Electronics and Energy 13.2 (0.2) — 13.1
Consumer 1.9 — 0.3 2.2
Total Company 6.66 (1.2)% 0.6 6.0%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the third quarter of 2@icteased 6.0 percent compared to the same perid@ili6, with
increases in organic local-currency sales (whickuihes organic volume impacts plus selling pricpants) and foreign
currency translation, partially offset by divestéumpacts. Total company organic local-currendgsacreased 6.6
percent, with growth in all business segments. @ride operating income margins for the third quaofe2017 were
25.0 percent, compared to 24.7 percent for the tpirarter of 2016, with operating income margireatgr than 22
percent across all five business segments.

Divestitures reduced third quarter sales growti ypercent. As part of its ongoing portfolio ma@agnt process, 3M
sold its protective films business and cathodesbatechnology out-license business (both in foquhrter 2016). In
addition, 3M sold its prescription safety eyeweasibess (January 2017), its identify managemerihbss (May 2017),
and its tolling and automated license/number platdegnition business (June 2017). Refer to NotetBeé Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional detail.
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Nine months ended September 30,

2017 2016 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 8,193 $ 1,762 $ 7,856 $ 1,837 4.3% (4.1%
Safety and Graphics 4,603 1,661 4,538 1,152 1.4% 44.2%
Health Care 4,339 1,317 4,176 1,350 3.9% (2.4%
Electronics and Energy 3,838 920 3,468 716 10.6% 28.5%
Consumer 3,415 724 3,390 836 0.7% (13.4%
Corporate and Unallocated 5 (225) 5 (189) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (726 (160 (653 (144 — —
Total Company $23,667 $ 5,999 $22,780 $ 5,558 3.9% 7.9%

Nine months ended September 30, 2017
Organic

Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Divestitures Transtati change
Industrial 5.2% (0.6% (0.3% 4.3%
Safety and Graphics 4.6 (3.0) (0.2) 1.4
Health Care 4.1 — (0.2 3.9
Electronics and Energy 11.0 (0.2) (0.2) 10.6
Consumer 0.5 — 0.2 0.7
Total Company 5.0 (0.9)% (0.2)% 3.%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the first nine months @12 increased 3.9 percent, with an increase innicdacal-currency
sales partially offset by divestiture and foreigmrency translation impacts. Total company orgémal-currency sales
increased 5.0 percent, with growth in all busireeggments. All five of 3M’s business segments acdesperating
income margins in excess of 21 percent. Worldwigerating income margins for the first nine month&@l7 were
25.3 percent, compared to 24.4 percent for therire months of 2016, helped by a net benefit fdiwestiture gains,
net of lost operating income, partially offset bgriemental strategic investments. Organic volunoevtit also benefited
results.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the s#léhe remaining portions of its library systemsiness. Also, in the
first quarter of 2016, 3M divested the assets ofs3pessurized polyurethane foam adhesives bus{f@sserly known
as Polyfoam). These businesses were formerly panedCompany’s Safety and Graphics business ashastnial
business, respectively. Additional acquisition dngestiture impacts that impacted the first ninenths ended
September 30, 2017 are provided in the preceding) ¢uarter discussion.
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Sales by geographic area:

Percent change information compares the third quartd first nine months of 2017 with the samequksiast year,
unless otherwise indicated. From a geographic pets, any references to EMEA refer to Europe,diicEast and
Africa on a combined basis. Additional discussidg@ographic area impacts by business segmenbiédad in the
Performance by Business Segment section.

Three months ended September 30, 2017

Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East  America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide

Net sales (millions $3,223 $2580 $ 1589 $ 784 $ 4) $ 8,172

% of worldwide sales 39.4% 31.6% 19.4% 9.6% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 3.8% 13.4% 3.3% 4.4% — 6.6%
Price (0.2 (0.6 0.7 0.9 — —
Organic local-currency sales 3.6 12.8 4.0 5.3 — 6.6
Divestitures (1.6 (0.5 (0.8 (2.1 — 1.2
Translation — (1.5) 4.2 2.4 — 0.6
Total sales change 20% 10.8% 7.4% 5.6% — 6.0%
Total sales change:
Industrial 4.0% 6.4 % 9.6% 7.2% — 6.2%
Safety and Graphics (3.0% 6.2% 8.7% (0.6% — 1.9%
Health Care 8.5% 7.4% 52% 10.7% — 7.7%
Electronics and Energy (1.8% 19.2% 4.8% 8.3% — 13.1%
Consumer 1.1% 5.3% 1.6% 5.6% — 2.2%
Organic local-currency sales change:
Industrial 5.0% 8.7% 5.2% 5.6% — 6.1%
Safety and Graphics 31% 11.0% 7.7% 4.2% — 6.0%
Health Care 8.5% 8.8% 1.6% 8.6% — 6.9%
Electronics and Energy (1.5 20.0% 0.9% 6.2% — 13.2%
Consumer 1.1% 7.1% (2.2% 2.7% — 1.9%

Additional information beyond what is included hetpreceding table is as follows:

» Inthe Asia Pacific geographic area, where 3M'scEtmics and Energy business is concentrated, sales
benefited from strengthened demand across mogtatérs market segments. In China/Hong Kong, botél t
sales and organic local-currency sales increasqu&%nt. In Japan, total sales declined 1 perasrirganic
local-currency sales growth of 5 percent was mioa@ bffset by foreign currency translation impacts.

* Inthe EMEA geographic area, Central/East EurogkNitdle East/Africa had both total sales and organ
local-currency sales increases of 8 percent. Wassifie total sales grew 7 percent, driven by foreigmency
translation impacts, in addition to organic locaftrency sales growth of 3 percent.

* Inthe Latin America/Canada geographic area, &#hgds increased 8 percent in Mexico, driven bymimga
local-currency sales growth of 5 percent. In Canéatal sales increased 16 percent, driven by acdanal-
currency sales growth of 14 percent. In Brazilatstles growth of 2 percent was driven by foreigmency
translation impact, as organic local-currency sghesvth was flat.

Selling prices were flat year-on-year for the thgudarter of 2017, compared to a year-on-year deeref0.3 percent for
the second quarter of 2017. In Asia Pacific, streolgme growth in electronics had a negative immacprice. Latin
America/Canada and EMEA had price growth, whilelh®. selling prices declined slightly.

Foreign currency translation increased year-on-gakes by 0.6 percent, with translation-relatedssaicreases in both
EMEA and Latin America/Canada. In Asia Pacific, thé. dollar was weaker compared to the third guart 2016 by
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8 percent versus the Japanese Yen, while the Ghivigasn was flat. In EMEA, the U.S. dollar was sggencompared to
the third quarter of 2016 by 6 percent versus tineEwhile the British Pound was flat.

Nine months ended September 30, 2017

Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada  Unallocated Worldwide

Net sales (millions $9,291 $7,335 $ 4,771 $2277 $ (7) $23,667

% of worldwide sales 39.3% 31.0% 20.1% 9.6% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 26% 11.4% 1.4% 2.8% — 5.1%
Price (0.3 (0.4 0.5 1.0 — (0.1
Organic local-currency sales 2.3 11.0 1.9 3.8 — 5.0
Divestitures 1.3 (0.3 (0.5 1.3 — (0.9
Translation — (1.0) (0.4) 2.2 — (0.2)
Total sales change 1.0% 9.7% 1.0% 4.7% — 3.9%
Total sales change:
Industrial 3.9% 6.1% 30% 43% — 4.3%
Safety and Graphics (1.2% 5.4% 2.4% 0.8% — 1.4%
Health Care 4.7% 6.9 % Q1.7% 10.4% — 3.9%
Electronics and Energy (0.6% 17.2% (1.2% 4.0% — 10.6%
Consumer (1.2)% 6.7% (2.8)% 6.9 % — 0.7%
Organic local-currency sales change:
Industrial 5.0% 7.8% 3.7% 2.6% — 5.2%
Safety and Graphics 28% 83% 49% 32% — 4.6%
Health Care 4.7% 7.8% (0.6% 8.1% — 4.1%
Electronics and Energy 04% 17.8% (1.7)% 25% — 11.0%
Consumer (1.2% 6.8% (2.6% 3.9% — 0.5%

Additional information beyond what is included hetpreceding table is as follows:

* Inthe Asia Pacific geographic area, where 3M'<itics and Energy business is concentrated, sales
benefited from strengthened demand across mogtaiérs market segments. Total sales in China/H¢mogg
grew 15 percent and Japan grew 5 percent. On amiartpcal-currency sales basis, China/Hong Korgvgt8
percent and Japan grew 9 percent.

» Inthe EMEA geographic area, Central/East EuropkNiddle East/Africa total sales and organic local-
currency grew 2 percent. West Europe total salew drpercent, as organic local-currency sales dgrof2
percent was partially offset by foreign curren@nslation.

» Inthe Latin America/Canada geographic area, s#hds increased 4 percent in Mexico, as organaidoc
currency sales growth of 7 percent was partialfgaifby foreign currency translation and divesétunin
Canada, both total sales and organic-local curreatas grew 6 percent. In Brazil total sales groofthl
percent was driven by foreign currency translatighile organic local-currency sales increased teuer

Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yabkessby 0.2 percent, with the translation-relatgddsincrease in
Latin America/Canada more than offset by the desggeé& EMEA and Asia Pacific.

Managing currency risks:
The stronger U.S. dollar had a negative impactabessand earnings in the first nine months of 2@M utilizes a

number of tools to hedge currency risk relatedaimimgs. 3M uses natural hedges such as pricioglugtivity, hard
currency and hard currency-indexed billings, arwliaing source of supply. 3M also uses financaddes to mitigate
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currency risk. In the case of more liquid curreaci®V hedges a portion of its aggregate expossiegwa 12, 24 or 36
month horizon, depending on the currency in quastor less liquid currencies, financial hedginfréguently more
expensive with more limitations on tenor. Thus tii8& is largely managed via local operational@usi using natural
hedging tools as discussed above. In either cdd's,[82dging approach is designed to mitigate aipomf foreign
currency risk and reduce volatility, ultimatelyailing time for 3M’s businesses to respond to chariig¢he
marketplace.

Financial condition:

3M generated $4.380 billion of operating cash flamnvthe first nine months of 2017, a decrease &f®illion when
compared to the first nine months of 2016. Refdh#osection entitled “Financial Condition and Lidjty” later in
MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows

In February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors authodizbe repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s oatgting common
stock, with no pre-established end date. In the fime months of 2017, the Company purchased $lliégn of its own
stock, compared to $2.8 billion of stock purchaseke first nine months of 2016. As of Septemb@&rZ17,
approximately $5.6 billion remained available unther February 2016 authorization. The Company exgegurchase
$2.0 billion to $2.5 billion of its own stock in 2@. In February 2017, 3M’s Board of Directors deetha first-quarter
2017 dividend of $1.175 per share, an increasepeiréent. This marked the 59th consecutive yedividend increases
for 3M. In May 2017, 3M’s Board of Directors de@dra second quarter 2017 dividend of $1.175 peeshaAugust
2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a third qeaR017 dividend of $1.175 per share.

3M currently has an AA- credit rating with a stabl&look from Standard & Poor’s and has an Al d¢reating with a
stable outlook from Moody’s Investors Service. TBmmpany generates significant ongoing cash flowtesdproven
access to capital markets funding throughout bssicgcles.

3M expects to contribute approximately $300 milltors5500 million of cash to its global defined bfingension and

postretirement plans in 2017. The Company doesian¢ a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2017.
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Divestitures and Strategic Investments:

In both the third quarter and first nine month2017, the Company continued to execute on accilgriazivestments in
growth initiatives and footprint optimization. ladition, the Company divested certain businesséscastinued to
focus its portfolio on opportunities that createajer value for its shareholders. As shown belbesé divestitures and
strategic investments led to a net year-on-yearedse of approximately $0.05 per diluted sharesabenefit of $0.10
per diluted share, respectively, for the three @ind months ended September 30, 2017.

Three months ended September 30, 2017Nine months ended September 30, 2017

Impact per Impact per
Divestiture impacts and strategic investments net diluted share diluted share
benefit/(cost) (in millions, except per share amoug) Pre-tax impact after-tax Pre-tax impact after-tax
Divestiture impacts:
2017 divestiture gains $ — $ 490
Less: prior year divestiture gains — (40)
Year-on-year lost operating loss/(income)
from divested businesses 10 (2)
Year-on-year divestiture impacts, net of lost
operating loss/(income) $ 10 % 0.01 $ 448 % 0.56
Strategic investments:
2017 portfolio and footprint optimization
activities:
Restructuring actions and exit activites  $ — $ (123
Asset charges and accelerated depreciation (24) (140
Other costs (11 (26)
Less: prior year portfolio and footprint
optimization activities 6 21
Year-on-year portfolio and footprint
optimization (29) $ (0.04 (268 $ (0.34)
Incremental year-on-year growth initiatives (29) (94)
Total incremental strategic investments ~ $ (48 $ (0.06, $ (362 $ (0.46)
Year-on-year divestiture impacts and strategic
investments net benefit/(cost) $ (38) % (0.05) $ 86 $ 0.10

The total pre-tax year-on-year divestiture impaés,of strategic investments from the table abave further detailed
below by business group:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(Millions) September 30, 2017 September 30, 2017
Industrial $ 12, $ (114
Safety and Graphics 5 460
Health Care 4) (49)
Electronics and Energy (7 (80)
Consumer (13 (88)
Corporate and Unallocated (7) (43)
Total pretax divestiture gains, net of strategiestments $ (38 $ 86
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Fourth Quarter 2017 Items:

In October 2017, 3M sold its electronic monitorimgsiness to an affiliate of Apax Partners for $&tillion, net of cash
sold and closing and other adjustments. 3M expepre-tax gain of approximately $100 million (or dehts per diluted
share) in the fourth quarter of 2017 as a resuthisfdivestiture. Refer to Note 2 for additionatails.

In October 2017, 3M completed the acquisition ef timderlying legal entities and associated as§&sait Safety,
which is headquartered in Monroe, North Carolimamf Johnson Controls for $2.0 billion, net of ctasand other
adjustments. The income from on-going operatioasphacquisition and integration costs, is expéttedecrease
earnings in the fourth quarter of 2017 by approxahe8 cents per diluted share. Refer to Note Zftditional details.

During the fourth quarter of 2017, a debt extinaient charge of approximately $95 million relatedhe repurchase
of $305 million aggregate principal amount of thengpany’s high coupon debt via tender offers is etgrbto decrease
earnings by approximately 11 cents per dilutedeshaefer to Note 8 for additional details.

Additionally in the fourth quarter of 2017, the Cpamy will recognize additional incremental strateigivestments
comprised of growth initiatives and portfolio arabfprint optimization charges. These incrementaltsgic
investments are expected to decrease fourth qudiet earnings year-on-year by approximately 6scentO cents per
diluted share.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding sections entitled “Salesap@tating income by business segment” and “Sald®perating
income by geographic area” for discussion of salesge.

Operating Expenses:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,

(Percent of net sales) 2017 2016 Change 2017 ole Change
Cost of sales 49.4% 49.9% (0.5)% 50.5% 49.7% 0.8%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 19.9 19.9 — 20.4 20.3 0.1
Research, development and related expense: 5.7 5.5 0.2 5.9 5.8 0.1
Gain from sale of businesses — — — (2.1 (0.2) (1.9)
Operating income 25.0% 24.7% 0.3% 25.3% 24.4% 0.9%

3M expects global defined benefit pension and ptistment expense in 2017 (before settlementsaitments, special
termination benefits and other) to increase by axprately $74 million pre-tax when compared to 20d/8ich impacts
cost of sales; selling, general and administraxgenses (SG&A); and research, development antbdeéxpenses
(R&D). Refer to 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K eéadtMay 4, 2017 (MD&A section entitled Critical Aaoating
Estimates — Pension and Postretirement ObligatmisNote 11, Pension and Postretirement Benefitspkar
background concerning the change to the spot giglde approach and other factors that will impatgion and
postretirement expenses in 2017. The year-on-yeagase in defined benefit pension and postretineepense for
the third quarter and first nine months of 2017 %28 million and $64 million, respectively.
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The Company is investing in an initiative callecsimess transformation, with these investments itipgcost of sales,
SG&A, and R&D. Business transformation encompatis2®ngoing multi-year phased implementation oéaterprise
resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basisvell as changes in processes and internaiextservice
delivery across 3M.

In both the three and nine months ended Septenth&03.7, strategic investments in growth initiasiveortfolio
actions and footprint optimization, in additiongains on divestitures, impacted 3M’s operating esps. The table
below reflects actual amounts within the period dods not include any year-on-year impacts.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(Millions) September 30, 2017 September 30, 2017
Cost of sales $ 18 $ 220
Selling, general and administrative expenses 57 185
Research, development and related charges — 9
Gain on sale of businesses — (490)
Total $ 7% (76)

Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineerimyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of salegaded in the third quarter of 2017, helped by érégnt organic sales
volume growth and an approximate 1 percent yeayeam-reduction in raw material input costs as alted input
management. This decrease was partially offseely-gn-year charges related to 3M’s optimizatioitsoportfolio and
supply chain footprint, foreign currency effectet(of hedge impacts), and higher defined benefisjpm expense.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of salesaset in the first nine months of 2017 due to imeratal strategic
investments in productivity, portfolio actions afledtprint optimization, foreign currency effectse{rof hedge impacts),
and higher defined benefit pension expense. Thispaatially offset by an approximate 1.5 percemtryen-year
reduction in raw material input costs as a reduilhjput management. Selling prices decreased het gaar-on-year by
0.1 percent in the first nine months of 2017.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A in dollars increased 6.1 percent and 4.5 pdricethe third quarter and first nine months o 20respectively,
when compared to the same period last year, imgdmgténcremental strategic investments and higlkeéindd benefit
pension expense.

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D in dollars increased $36 million and $93 mifli; the third quarter and first nine months of 20fkespectively,
compared to the same period last year. 3M contiho@avest in its key initiatives, including R&Draed at disruptive
innovation programs with the potential to creatgrely new markets and disrupt existing markets.

Gain on Sale of Businesses:

In January 2017, 3M completed the sale of asskttecktto its safety prescription eyewear business@YA Vision
Care. 3M received proceeds of $53 million for thimsaction and recognized, net of assets solisdcdion and other
costs, a pre-tax gain of $29 million, which wasared within the Company’s Safety and Graphics ress.

In May 2017, 3M completed the sale of its identitgnagement business to Gemalto N.V. In June 2 &dBnpleted

the sale of its tolling and automated license/nunplieete recognition business to Neology, Inc. 3idereed proceeds of
$833 million, or $809 million net of cash sold, amdlected a pre-tax gain of $461 million as a hestithese two
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divestitures in the second quarter of 2017, whiels veported within the Company’s Safety and Grapbisiness. For
more details, refer to Note 2.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the sHléhe remainder of the assets of 3M’s librarytegss business to One
Equity Partners Capital Advisors L.P. (OEP). Alsdhe first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the sdliés pressurized
polyurethane foam adhesives business (formerly knasvPolyfoam) to Innovative Chemical Products @rau

portfolio company of Audax Private Equity. 3M resed proceeds of $56 million for these transactamd recognized a
pre-tax gain of $40 million as a result of these tlivestitures in the first quarter of 2016. Thbasinesses were
formerly part of the Company’s Safety and Graphigsiness and Industrial business, respectivelyerRefNote 2 in
3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 20d/hi¢h updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10fd€)

more information on 3M’s acquisitions and divesti

Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryrass segment performance measurement tools. Rdfex table
below for a reconciliation of operating income masgfor the three months and nine months endede8dyar 30, 2017
versus the same periods last year.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(Percent of net sales) September 30, 2017 September 30, 2017
Same period last year 24.7% 24.4%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income marginialue

Organic volume/productivity 0.9 0.8
Selling price and raw material impact 0.3 0.3
Foreign exchange impacts (0.4 (0.4
Pension and postretirement benefit costs (0.3) (0.3)
Divestiture gains — 1.9
Operating loss/(income) from divested businesses 0.4 0.1
Incremental strategic investments (0.6 (1.5

Current period 25.0% 25.3%

Operating income margins increased 0.3 percentaigesgdn the third quarter of 2017 and increas@dp@&rcentage
points in the first nine months of 2017 when coregao the same periods last year. 3M benefited frean-on-year
divestiture gains (refer to Note 2), non-repeatiagoperating losses from divested businessesghajiganic local-
currency sales growth and productivity. 3M alsodfied from raw material cost decreases. Itemsrétiiced
operating income margins included year-on-yeareimental strategic investments in growth, produistignd portfolio
actions, in addition to charges related to 3M’srajation of its portfolio and supply chain footpti Additional items
that reduced operating margins included foreigmeswy effects (net of hedge impacts) and higher-gaayear defined
benefit pension expense.

Interest Expense and Income:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Interest expense $ 57 $ 50 $ 156 $ 135
Interest income (13) (8) (33) (20)
Total $ 44 $ 42 % 123 $ 115

Interest expense was higher in the third quartdrfast nine months of 2017 compared to the samoge last year,
largely due to higher U.S. average debt balancédaier interest rates. Interest income was highthe third quarter
and first nine months of 2017 compared to the saen®ds last year, due to higher average cash dxedeamd cash
yields.
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Provision for Income Taxes:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Percent of pre-tax income) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Effective tax rate 28.3% 28.5% 26.1% 28.3%

The effective tax rate for the third quarter of 20¢as 28.3 percent, compared to 28.5 percent ithtteequarter of
2016, a decrease of 0.2 percentage points. Thetigffeax rate for the first nine months of 2017%v2%.1 percent,
compared to 28.3 percent in the first nine monfiZ0d.6, a decrease of 2.2 percentage points. Taeges in the rates
between years are impacted by many factors, asideddurther in Note 6.

The Company currently anticipates its 2017 fulltyix rate will be 26.0 to 27.0 percent. The rate ¢ary from quarter
to quarter due to discrete items, such as the=gsdtit of income tax audits and changes in tax éawlsemployee share-
based payment accounting; as well as recurringfacsuch as geographic mix of income before taresforeign
currency effects.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 4 $ 2 3 9 % 7

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesiresents the elimination of the income or log#hatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese phimary noncontrolling interest relates to 3Miintdimited, of
which 3M’s effective ownership is 75 percent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incopr&2® million

and $108 million for the three and nine months drBeptember 30, 2017, respectively. This estinmtiedes the effect
of translating profits from local currencies intaSJdollars; the impact of currency fluctuationstba transfer of goods
between 3M operations in the United States andaabrand transaction gains and losses, includingatere
instruments designed to reduce foreign currenchaxge rate risks and any impacts from swapping Xszian

bolivars into U.S. dollars. 3M estimates that yearyear derivative and other transaction gainslassks decreased
pre-tax income by $34 million and $99 million ftretthree and nine months ended September 30, &&béctively.

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accoumg Estimates:
Information regarding new accounting standardadfuded in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiatedtents. In

addition, refer to the Critical Accounting Estimsitgection within MD&A of 3M’s Current Report on For8-K dated
May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report-orm 10-K).
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PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures relating to 3M’s business segmentpareided in Note 14. Effective in the first quartdr2017, as part of
3M'’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around markets and customers, tmp&ty made the
following changes:

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
» 3M'’s former Renewable Energy Division (RED) hasrbegegrated into existing divisions within the
Electronics and Energy business segment and Safetyraphics business segment. 3M is committed to
leadership in sustainability and to enabling theastement of energy solutions into the future.draéng
RED'’s offerings into larger divisions already sexyithese segments will provide increased scaléaitd on
strength by leveraging 3M'’s existing brands, gavtarket capabilities, and relationships to suppoivh
objectives.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Bioin

» 3M created the Automotive and Aerospace Solutionss@n, which combined the former Automotive
Division and Aerospace and Commercial Transpontaiivision, which were both within the Industrial
business segment. Combining the strengths alorgthdt deep industry knowledge of each business will
enable this new division to utilize shared techgglplatforms and processes to deliver a broadesfset
innovative solutions, along with world-class quahind service to 3M’s customers. This combinatidhielp
accelerate the Company’s profitable growth and etanddevance across the automotive, aerospace and
commercial transportation industries.

Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting

e The Company consolidated its customer accountifctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales distid his
improved alignment reduces the complexity for costs when interacting with multiple businesses iwith
3M, creating a better customer experience. 3M ssisegment reporting measures include dual ¢eedit
business segments for certain U.S. sales and dedgterating income. This dual credit is based oithvh
business segment provides customer account actitityrespect to a particular product sold in th& Urhe
alignment of U.S. customer accounts to fewer, niocased sales districts changed the attributioshuad credit
across 3M’s business segments.

Business segment information presented hereinctsftbe impact of these changes for all periodsemied. 3M
manages its operations in five business segmehtsrdportable segments are Industrial; Safety aagltcs;
Electronics and Energy; Health Care; and Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five business segments, 3liyas<ertain costs to “Corporate and Unallocatedich is presented
separately in the preceding business segmentsaatlen Note 14. Corporate and Unallocated incliadesriety of
miscellaneous items, such as corporate investnans @nd losses, certain derivative gains and $osgetain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigand environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. penstook-based compensation) that the Company detesmot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Bectuse&ategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterns, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses isedeay $35 million and $36 million in the third qiea and first
nine months of 2017, respectively, when comparatidsame period last year. In both the first awbsd quarters of
2017, a portion of the severance actions wereatefiein Corporate and Unallocated. In addition, 8klefined benefit
pension and postretirement expense allocation tpaZate and Unallocated increased by $8 million $2id million,
respectively, in the third quarter and first ninenths of 2017 when compared to the same periotigdas.
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Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M’s business segmentsHerthird quarter and first nine months of 2017 206 is presented
in the tables that follow. Organic local-curreneyes include both organic volume impacts plussgliirice impacts.
Acquisition impacts, if any, are measured sepaydtelthe first twelve months post-transaction. Teestiture
impacts, if any, foreign currency translation imisaend total sales change are also provided fdr leasiness segment.
Any references to EMEA relate to Europe, Middle tezasl Africa on a combined basis.

Refer to the preceding “Sales and operating incbyngeographic area” section for organic local-cucgesales growth
by business segment within major geographic areas.

Industrial Business:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 2,764 $ 2,603 $ 8,193 $ 7,856
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 6.1% (1.3% 5.2% (1.5%
Acquisitions — 1.6 — 2.1
Divestitures (0.6, (0.2 (0.6, (0.2,
Translation 0.7 0.7 (0.3) (1.2)
Total sales change 6.2% 0.8% 4.3% (0.8%
Operating income (millions) $ 614 $ 595 $ 1,762 $ 1,837
Percent change 3.1% 1.9% (4.1)% 2.2%
Percent of sales 22.2% 22.9% 21.5% 23.4%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM)

and automotive aftermarket (auto body shops ardl)etlectronics, appliance, paper and printiregkaging, food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productludetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-wovenkzontied abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiais, 3M purification (filtration products),odure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaicti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @irend specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirapgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthmarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develapsl produces advanced technical ceramics for ddingn
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

Third Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $2.8 billion, up 6.2qent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sateseased 6.1 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.6 percent, andgfoirrency translation increased sales by 0.Zqur

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in all businesses, led by advanced mlatendustrial adhesives and tapes, and sepasadind
purification sciences.
« Abrasives, and automotive and aerospace solutisnsshowed positive growth, with strong performaimce
automotive OEM platforms.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its temygoaotective films business.
* InJanuary 2016, 3M completed its sale of the asse3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adhesivsiless
(formerly known as Polyfoam).
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e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the Astg2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading praviafe
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme

Operating income:
* Operating income margins decreased 0.7 percentagtspas third quarter footprint and portfolioians
reduced year-on-year operating income margins épércentage points.

First Nine Months 2017 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $8.2 billion, up 4.3qemnt in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency saheseased 5.2 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.6 percent, anigfoirrency translation reduced sales by 0.3 perce

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in all businesses, led by advanced matemutomotive and aerospace solutions, and tridus
adhesives and tapes.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its temygoaotective films business.
* InJanuary 2016, 3M completed its sale of the asse3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adhesivsiless
(formerly known as Polyfoam).
e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the Astg2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading praviafe
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme

Operating income:

e Operating income margins decreased 1.9 percentiges pas divestiture impacts related to the fitgirter
2016 sale of the Polyfoam business resulted irt ga@-on-year operating income margin reductiof.af
percentage points. In addition, incremental stiatgryestments decreased first nine months matnyr3.9
percentage points.

Safety and Graphics Business:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1529 $ 1,500 $ 4603 $ 4,538
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 6.0% 1.5% 4.6% 2.1%
Acquisitions — 2.0 — 5.1
Divestitures (4.9 (2.1 (3.0 (2.2,
Translation 0.8 0.4 (0.2) (1.9)
Total sales change 1.9% 1.8% 1.4% 3.1%
Operating income (millions) $ 410 $ 3712 $ 1661 $ 1,152
Percent change 10.5% 11.7% 44.2% 9.4%
Percent of sales 26.8% 24.8% 36.1% 25.4%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad cdmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product affgs include personal protection products, suctesgiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safedjusions, such as retroreflective sign sheetingne®rcial solutions,
including commercial graphics sheeting and systamthitectural design solutions for surfaces, dadring and
protection products for commercial establishmeautst roofing granules for asphalt shingles.

68



Third Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $1.5 billign1.9 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnecsesales increased
6.0 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 4.9perand foreign currency translation increaseessay 0.8 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales increases were led by personal safety, vdoiotinued to experience strong demand.
» Sales also increased in roofing granules and toatedjpn safety, while commercial solutions dedline

Acquisitions and divestitures:
« Acquisition sales growth in 2016 reflected the asitjon of Capital Safety in August 2015. Capitaif&@y is a
leading global provider of fall protection equiprhen
e InJanuary 2017, 3M sold its safety prescriptioavegar business.
* In May 2017, 3M closed on the sale and transfeaotrol of its identity management business. InreJ2®17,
3M completed the sale of its tolling and automdieshse/number plate recognition business.

Operating income:
» Operating income margins increased 2.0 percentaigeésp benefiting from higher organic sales volume,
partially offset by third quarter footprint and gfotio actions, which resulted in a year-on-yeaeigting
income margin reduction of 0.6 percentage points.

First Nine Months 2017 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $4.6 billignl1.4 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnecsesales increased
4.6 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 3.Ceperand foreign currency translation reduced dayd3.2 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by personal safety.
» Roofing granules and transportation safety shovesitipe growth, while commercial solutions was flat

Acquisitions and divestitures:

e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 reflected the asitjon of Capital Safety in August 2015. Capitaif&y is a
leading global provider of fall protection equiprhen

e Inthe first quarter of 2016, 3M divested the remdair of the library systems business.

e InJanuary 2017, 3M sold its safety prescriptioavegar business.

* Inthe second quarter of 2017, 3M finalized the sdlits identity management business and tollimgd) a
automated license/number plate recognition busirBdgecorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $461
million as a result of these two divestitures.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased 10.7 percemaigg¢s, largely driven by year-on-year divestitgeens
that were partially offset by acquisition charged incremental strategic investments, which contbiesulted
in a net operating income margin benefit of 9.7cpatage points.

In October 2017, 3M completed the acquisition ef timderlying legal entities and associated as$&sait Safety,
which is headquartered in Monroe, North Carolimagf Johnson Controls for $2.0 billion, net of ctasand other
adjustments. This business will be reported withenCompany’s Safety and Graphics business. Refdote 2 for
additional details.

Also in October 2017, 3M completed the sale oélectronic monitoring business. The Company expectsflect a

pre-tax gain of approximately $100 million in theufth quarter of 2017 as a result of this divestituhich will be
reported within the Safety and Graphics businesfeiRo Note 2 for additional details.
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Health Care Business:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,476 $ 1,371 $ 4339 $ 4,176
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 6.9% 1.6% 4.1% 4.3%
Acquisitions — — — 0.3
Translation 0.8 (0.4 (0.2 (1.8
Total sales change 7.7% 1.2% 3.9% 2.8%
Operating income (millions) $ 471 $ 431 $ 1,317 $ 1,350
Percent change 9.3% (0.5% (2.4% 5.0%
Percent of sales 31.9% 31.5% 30.4% 32.3%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadical clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalataleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sysse and food manufacturing and testing. Produaissanvices
provided to these and other markets include meditdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products.

Third Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Health Care totaled $1.5 billion, up 7Zvcent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency satereased 6.9
percent and foreign currency translation increasdels by 0.8 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales increased in all businesses, led by drugatglsystems, food safety, medical consumablesciwisi
comprised of the critical and chronic care busirsagsinfection prevention business), and oral care.
e Sales also increased in health information systems.
* In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales growth was led by China/Hong Kong and
Latin America.

Acquisitions:
* In September 2017, 3M acquired Elution Technolqdie€, a manufacturer of food safety test kids. dReb
Note 2 for additional details.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased 0.4 percentaiggspyear-on-year, helped by organic local-curyesales
growth. Incremental strategic investments, prinyaréllated to accelerating future growth opportesiti
reduced margins by 0.3 percentage points.

First Nine Months 2017 results:

Sales in Health Care totaled $4.3 billion, up 3fcgnt in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency satereased 4.1
percent and foreign currency translation reducéssday 0.2 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales increased in drug delivery systems, foodysafeedical consumables (which is comprised ofdtitécal
and chronic care and infection prevention busirgssed oral care.
» Sales declined slightly in health information sysse
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Acquisitions:
e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the 8ha2015 purchase of Ivera Medical Corp. Iverais a
manufacturer of health care products that disirdect protect devices used for access into a patient
bloodstream.

* In September 2017, 3M acquired Elution Technolqdié€, a manufacturer of food safety test kids.
Operating income:
e Operating income margins decreased 1.9 percentoyegear, as incremental strategic investmentsamily
related to accelerating future growth opportunjtresluced margins by 1.1 percentage points.

Electronics and Energy Business:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,414 $ 1,250 $ 3838 $ 3,468
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 13.2% (7.9% 11.0% (20.0%
Divestitures (0.2) — (0.2) —
Translation — 0.6 (0.2 (0.6
Total sales change 13.1% (7.3)% 10.6% (10.6)%
Operating income (millions) $ 394 % 304 $ 920 $ 716
Percent change 29.9% (9.5% 28.5% (18.4%
Percent of sales 27.9% 24.3% 24.0% 20.6%

The Electronics and Energy segment includes salsifibat improve the dependability, cost-effectis=nand
performance of electronic devices; electrical paiguincluding infrastructure protection; telecommuations networks;
and power generation and distribution. This segte@héctronics solutions include optical film satuts for the
electronic display industry; high-performance flumhd abrasives; high-temperature and display tépaible circuits,
which use electronic packaging and interconnedtgohnology; and touch systems products. This setjisnemergy
solutions include pressure sensitive tapes andggslectrical insulation; infrastructure produttat provide both
protection and detection solutions; a wide arrafjlar-optic and copper-based telecommunicatiossesys; and
renewable energy component solutions for the soldrwind power industries.

Third Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Electronics and Energy totaled $1.4 iligp 13.1 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakrency sales
increased 13.2 percent, divestitures reduced bglésl percent, and foreign currency translatios fiat.

Total sales within the electronics-related busiasssere up 18 percent and energy-related businsakesswere up 3
percent. Total sales increased 19 percent in AaiiP.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales increased 18 percent in 3M’s electronicgadlhusinesses, with increases in both displaynmateand
systems and electronics materials solutions, abukmesses drove increased inclusion in OEM piago
globally, including semiconductor manufacturinggattonic assembly, data center and automotive
electrification.

» Sales increased 2 percent in 3M’s energy-relatsthbases, as sales increases in electrical mavike¢s
partially offset by sales declines in telecommutidces.

» Sales increased 20 percent in Asia Pacific, whit's 8lectronics business is concentrated.
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Divestitures:
* In December 2016, 3M sold the assets of its cathadtery technology out-licensing business, withuat
sales of approximately $10 million.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased 3.6 percentaigespdriven by underlying productivity gains rteld to
organic local-currency sales growth. Incrementaltsgic investments reduced margins by 0.3 pergenta
points.

First Nine Months 2017 results:

Sales in Electronics and Energy totaled $3.8 lnlligp 10.6 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
increased 11.0 percent, divestitures reduced bgl@s2 percent, and foreign currency translatiatuced sales by 0.2
percent.

Total sales within the electronics-related busiesssere up 17 percent while energy-related busiisessre flat. Total
sales increased 17 percent in Asia Pacific.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales increased 17 percent in 3M'’s electronicgedlbusinesses, with increases in both displaynmatend
systems and electronics materials solutions, abubmesses drove increased inclusion in OEM piaisan
addition to strengthened demand in consumer elgicso

» Sales were flat in 3M’s energy-related businesagsales growth in electrical markets was offseddxfines in
telecommunications.

» Sales increased 18 percent in Asia Pacific, whits 8lectronics business is concentrated.

Divestitures:
* In December 2016, 3M sold the assets of its cathatkery technology out-licensing business, withuad
sales of approximately $10 million.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased 3.4 percentaiggspas benefits from higher organic volume were
partially offset by first nine months of 2017 fodty and portfolio actions. These actions resuited year-on-
year operating income margin reduction of 1.9 patiage points.

Consumer Business:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,236 $ 1,210 $ 3415 $ 3,390
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 1.9% 2.9% 0.5% 2.7%
Translation 0.3 1.1 0.2 (0.8)
Total sales change 2.2% 4.0% 0.7% 1.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 307 % 317  $ 724 % 836
Percent change (3.2)% 8.2% (13.4% 5.5%
Percent of sales 24.8% 26.2% 21.2% 24.7%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclugrioeer retail, office retail, office business tsimess, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and othekets. Products in this segment include office $yippoducts,
stationery products, construction and home impragrproducts (do-it-yourself), home care produatstective
material products, certain consumer retail perseafdty products, and consumer health care praducts
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Third Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Consumer totaled $1.2 billion, up 2.2 @erin U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency saleséased 1.9 percent,
while foreign currency translation increased sale8.3 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in consumer health care, home improveraed home care.
e Strong performance in consumer brands, such asr@md” damage-free mounting, ScotchBtupainter’s
tape and Filtref& home filtration products, helped drive organicwitto year-on-year.
* The stationery and office supplies business detlthee to continued channel inventory adjustmemis)arily
in the U.S. office retail and wholesale market.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins declined 1.4 percentagegpgear-on-year, in part due to incremental sgiat
investments, which reduced margins by 1.1 percenpaints.

First Nine Months 2017 results:

Sales in Consumer totaled $3.4 billion, up 0.7 @etrin U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency safeséased 0.5 percent,
while foreign currency translation increased sale§.2 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales grew in home improvement, consumer healtly ead home care.
e The stationery and office supplies business deatlthee to channel inventory adjustments, primarilyhie U.S.
office retail and wholesale market.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins declined 3.5 percentagegpgear-on-year, in part due to incremental syt
investments, which reduced margins by 2.6 percenpaints.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizeghital structure and is adding leverage at a medspaice. The strength
and stability of 3M’s business model and strong frash flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtmans the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseawnind development, capital expenditures, and comatzation
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wWilbacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends hacksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilittydrinited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfitto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share regseshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr atbims as
needed. For those international earnings considerbd reinvested indefinitely, the Company cuisehas no plans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. oj@na. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 in 3M’'s&iReport on
Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017, for further informatiom earnings considered to be reinvested indeffynite

3M'’s primary short-term liquidity needs are meftthgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper isssaBM
believes it will have continuous access to the cenecial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpammits the
Company to have a maximum of $5 billion outstandiitlp a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance. At
September 30, 2017, there was approximately $22®min commercial paper issued and outstanding.
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Total Debt:

The Company’s total debt was approximately $11llibhiat both September 30, 2017 and December 316.2n May
2016, 3M issued 500 million Euro aggregate prinicggmaount of 5.75-year fixed rate medium-term nates February
2022 with a coupon rate of 0.375% and 500 milliemdEaggregate principal amount of 15-year fixee raedium-term
notes due 2031 with a coupon rate of 1.50%. IneSepér 2016, 3M issued $600 million aggregate poalcamount of
five-year fixed rate medium-term notes due 202hwitoupon rate of 1.625%, $650 million aggregaitecipal
amount of 10-year fixed rate medium-term notes20@6 with a coupon rate of 2.250%, and $500 mildggregate
principal amount of 30-year fixed rate medium-terotes due 2046 with a coupon rate of 3.125%. Athete 2016
issuances were under the medium-term notes pro(arnes F).

In September 2016, 3M repaid $1 billion aggregaitecgpal amount of fixed rate medium-term noted thatured. In
June 2017, 3M repaid $650 million aggregate prigcgpnount of fixed rate medium-term notes that meatu

In October 2017, 3M issued $650 million aggregategipal amount of 5.5-year fixed rate medium-terates due 2023
with a coupon rate of 2.25%, $850 million aggregatacipal amount of 10-year fixed rate medium-terates due
2027 with a coupon rate of 2.875%, and $500 milaggregate principal amount of 30-year fixed ragelimm-term
notes due 2047 with a coupon rate of 3.625%.

The proceeds from the debt issuance will be uséahni the notes repurchase described below, thehpee of Scott
Safety (refer to Note 2 for details), and for gaheorporate purposes.

In October 2017, 3M, via cash tender offers, repased $305 million aggregate principal amountbiitstanding
notes. This included $110 million of its $330 nai principal amount of 6.375% notes due 2028 argb$iillion of its
$750 million principal amount of 5.70% notes du@20The Company will reflect an early debt extirgument charge
of approximately $95 million in the fourth quarte#r2017 within interest expense associated wittdifferential
between the carrying value and the amount paiddoiee the tendered notes and related expenses.

As of September 30, 2017, the total amount of dshted as part of the medium-term notes programeSE),
inclusive of debt issued in 2011, 2012, 2014, 2848 the 2016 debt referenced above (excluding thel@r 2017
issuance above), is approximately $11.1 billiofliging the foreign exchange rates applicable attttne of issuance
for the Euro denominated debt). Information witkpect to long-term debt issuances and maturitiethéoperiods
presented is included in Note 10 of 3M’s Currenp&¢on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updatbtis32016
Annual Report on Form 10-K) .

The strength of 3M’s capital structure and sigifitongoing cash flows provide 3M proven accessapital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is gigered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngiear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 8itrently has an AA- credit rating with a stablelook from
Standard & Poor’s and has an Al credit rating wigtable outlook from Moody'’s Investors Servicee Tompany's
ongoing transition to a more optimized capital ste, financed with additional low-cost debt, abirhpact 3M’s
credit rating in the future.

Effective February 24, 2017, the Company updatetaell-known seasoned issuer” (WKSI) shelf regiitin
statement, which registers an indeterminate amofuthébt or equity securities for future issuance sale. This
replaced 3M’s previous shelf registration dated Méy2014. In May 2016, in connection with the WIs&Elf, 3M
entered into an amended and restated distribugiegeanent relating to the future issuance and §alm ime to time)
of the Company’s medium-term notes program (Sé¥)esip to the aggregate principal amount of $18oni] which
was an increase from the previous aggregate peahaipount up to $9 billion of the same Series.

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilityxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving creféitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreent includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving crediacility is undrawn at September 30, 2017. Under®B.75 billion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBB8 DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlgquarter at not
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less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as definge agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intesgmrese on all funded debt for the same period.eft&nber 30, 2017,
this ratio was approximately 42 to 1. Debt covegaltt not restrict the payment of dividends. Apartrf the committed
facilities, $290 million in stand-alone lettersarédit and bank guarantees were also issued asthnding at
September 30, 2017. These lines of credit arezetllin connection with normal business activities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities:

At September 30, 2017, 3M had $3.4 billion of castsh equivalents and marketable securities, afwépproximately
$3.3 billion was held by the Company’s foreign sdiasies and approximately $140 million was heldthbg United
States. These balances are invested in bank institsrand other high-quality fixed income securitisDecember 31,
2016, cash, cash equivalents and marketable sesuniéld by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries laynthe United
States totaled approximately $2.35 billion and $B88lion, respectively.

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):

Net debt is not defined under U.S. GAAP and maybgotomputed the same as similarly titled measused by other
companies. The Company defines net debt as tdvallelss the total of cash, cash equivalents aneicuand long-term
marketable securities. 3M believes net debt is ingéul to investors as 3M considers net debt anddmponents to be
important indicators of liquidity and financial ptsn. The following table provides net debt asSejptember 30, 2017,
and December 31, 2016.

(Millions) September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016 Change

Total debt $ 11,663 $ 11,650 $ 13

Less: Cash, cash equivalents and marketable desurit 3,434 2,695 739
Net debt (non-GAAP measure) $ 8,229 $ 8,955 $ (726

In the first nine months of 2017, net debt decredse$726 million to a net debt balance of $8.Hdyi| impacted by the
increase in cash and cash equivalents and marketablrities.

Balance Sheet:
3M'’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@mnmpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of numerous
opportunities going forward. The Company will coni to invest in its operations to drive growtlgluding continual

review of acquisition opportunities.

The Company uses working capital measures thae @agphasis and focus on certain working capitatas$hese
measures include working capital, accounts recéviaions, and inventory turns.

Working Capital (non-GAAP measure):

(Millions) September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016 Change

Current assets $ 13,656 $ 11,726 $ 1,930

Less: Current liabilities (6,598) (6,219) (379)
Working capital (non-GAAP measure) $ 7,058 $ 5,507 $ 1,551

Various assets and liabilities, including cash simart-term debt, can fluctuate significantly fromamth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita is not defined under U.S. generally acceptecbunting
principles and may not be computed the same atasiyiitled measures used by other companies.ddmpany
defines working capital as current assets minuseatfiabilities. Working capital increased $1.3%llion compared to
December 31, 2016. Current asset balance changesged working capital by $1.930 billion, drivenibcreases in
accounts receivable, and inventories (discusseldubelow), plus increases in cash. Current ligiflalance changes
decreased working capital by $379 million, largeiye to increases in other current liabilities aocraed payroll,
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partially offset by decreases in short-term debt.tlieves working capital is meaningful to investas a measure of
operational efficiency and short-term financial ltiea

Accounts Receivable and Inventory Turns (non-GAAReasures):

Accounts receivable and inventory turns are nonddfunder U.S. generally accepted accounting iple and may
not be computed the same as similarly titled messused by other companies. 3M defines accourds/edate turns as
quarterly net sales multiplied by 4 divided by engdaccounts receivable — net, and defines invertong as quarterly
manufacturing cost multiplied by 4 divided by erglinventory. 3M believes accounts receivable tismaeaningful to
investors as a measure of how efficiently the Campaanages credit and collects from its custontesinventory
turns calculation purposes, manufacturing coseffdd as cost of sales less freight and engingeasts. 3M believes
inventory turns is meaningful to investors as asneaof how quickly inventory is sold. Details béte calculations
follow.

Accounts receivable turns (non-GAAP measure)

(Millions, except turns) September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Quarterly net sales $ 8,172 $ 7,329
Ending accounts receivable - net $ 5,156 $ 4,392
Accounts receivable turns 6.34 6.67

Inventory turns (non-GAAP measure)
(Millions, except turns) September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016

Quarterly cost of sales $ 4,045 $ 3,716
Less: Freight and engineering $ 165 $ 160
Manufacturing cost $ 3,880 $ 3,556
Ending inventory $ 3975 $ 3,385
Inventory turns 3.91 4.20

Concerning accounts receivable, higher SeptemhEr 28les compared to December 2016 sales contlibutbe
accounts receivable increase. On a seasonal baflisaccounts receivable and inventory turns a®hcally higher at
year-end, driven by lower year-end accounts rebédvand inventory balances.

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financaogjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdideffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excje rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are presestsgparate line items within the statement of fiasvs. Thus, the
amounts presented in the following operating, itimgsand financing activities tables reflect chamgebalances from
period to period adjusted for these effects.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Nine months ended

September 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 4,344 $ 3,902
Depreciation and amortization 1,195 1,090
Company pension contributions (311 (320
Company postretirement contributions 3) 3)
Company pension expense 207 144
Company postretirement expense 37 36
Stock-based compensation expense 266 244
Gain on sale of businesses (490 (40)
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) 144 55
Accounts receivable (595 (469)
Inventories (436, (15]
Accounts payable (25) (207)
Other — net 47 (64

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,380 $ 4,453

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period, as pensiondimg decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significantipact cash flows.

In the first nine months of 2017, cash flows pr@ddy operating activities decreased $73 milliompared to the same
period last year. Factors that decreased operadisig flows were increases in accounts receivalilérsentories. The
combination of accounts receivable, inventories acmbunts payable increased working capital by3g8Lillion in the
first nine months of 2017, compared to the worldagital increases of $591 million in the first nimenths of 2016.
Additional discussion on working capital changeprisvided earlier in the “Financial Condition anigjidity” section.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Nine months ended

September 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ 914, $ (984
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (12) @av,
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and sataudfetable

securities and investments, net (310 (242)
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net of cash sold 862 56
Other — net 2 (4)
Net cash used in investing activil $ (354 $ (1,173

Investments in property, plant and equipment engleith across many diverse markets, helping tot ipeeluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.iBésts in renewal and maintenance programs, wectain to

cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and rengwdarrent capacity, pollution reduction, and compdie. Costs related
to maintenance, ordinary repairs, and certain dteers are expensed. 3M also invests in new groapacity, both
through expansion of current facilities and by dhini¢y new facilities. 3M also invests in corporabdratory facilities
and information technology (IT). The Company expe&217 capital spending to be approximately $1llibbi

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions atidestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional

acquisitions, investments and strategic allianaed,from time to time may also divest certain besses. Proceeds
from sale of businesses in the first nine month20df7 relate to the divestiture of the assets@fpitescription safety
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eyewear, identity management, and tolling and aatethlicense/number plate recognition businessesnithe Safety
and Graphics business segment.

Purchases of marketable securities and investragtproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsddarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, certificates of deposit/time deggosiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as alibgtfor-sale. Refer to Note 7 for more detailswl8M’s diversified
marketable securities portfolio. Purchases of imaests include additional survivor benefit insuranglus cost method
and equity investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Nine months ended

September 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Change in short-term debt — net $ 60 $ (498
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (650 (992)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — 2,832
Total cash change in debt $ (590 $ 1,342
Purchases of treasury stock (1,564 (2,829
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursaatbck option and benefit

plans 582 741
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,204 (2,014
Other — net (23) (20)
Net casfused in financing activities $ (3699 $ (2,780

Total debt was approximately $11.7 billion at b8#ptember 30, 2017 and year-end 2016. Changesiititehm debt
includes the net impact of repayments and borrosvimginternational subsidiaries, in addition to coencial paper
issuances, if any. Refer to the preceding “TotabtDsection for discussion of repayment of debt prateeds from
debt issuances.

Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@ithmany’s stock-based employee compensation plach$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8of Directors authorized the repurchase of upl billion of
3M'’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-estdigicsend date. The Company expects full-year 2043sghare
repurchases will be in the range of $2.0 billior$®5 billion. For more information, refer to trebte titled “Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part I, ItenTRe Company does not utilize derivative instruredimked to the
Company’s stock.

3M has paid dividends each year since 1916. Inugepr2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a fgearter 2017
dividend of $1.175 per share, an increase of 6gmerd his is equivalent to an annual dividend aff$4oer share and
marked the 59th consecutive year of dividend irmeedor 3M. In May 2017, 3M’s Board of Directorsctieed a
second-quarter 2017 dividend of $1.175 per shar@ubust 2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declarethiedtquarter
2017 dividend of $1.175 per share.

Other cash flows from financing activities may umb various other items, such as distributions teates of
noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdiatinces, and principal payments for capital kease

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion atelafined under U.S. generally accepted accoumtimgiples
(GAAP). Therefore, they should not be considersdlastitute for income or cash flow data prepareacitordance with
U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similatlgdi measures used by other companies. The Congedimes free
cash flow as net cash provided by operating ams/iess purchases of property, plant and equipritesttould not be
inferred that the entire free cash flow amountailable for discretionary expenditures. The Conypdefines free cash
flow conversion as free cash flow divided by netoime attributable to 3M. The Company believes @a&sh flow and
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free cash flow conversion are meaningful to invessts they are useful measures of performanceh@n@dmpany uses
these measures as an indication of the strengtieafompany and its ability to generate cash. rhedquarter of each
year is typically 3M’s seasonal low for free cakiwfand free cash flow conversion. Below find aagof free cash
flow for the nine months ended September 30, 20H72816.

Nine months ended
September 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016

Major GAAP Cash Flow Categories

Net cash provided by operating activi $ 4,380 $ 4,453
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ (354 (1,173)
Net cash used ifinancing activities (3,699 (2,780
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)

Net cash provided by operating activi $ 4,380 $ 4,453
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (914 (984)
Free cash flow $ 3,466 3 3,469
Net income attributable to 3 $ 4335 % 3,895
Free cash flow conversion 80% 89%
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CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including “Maeaent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand
Results of Operations” in Part I, Item 2, contdmsvard-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Companay also make forward-looking statements in iotBports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomaterials delivered to shareholders and in prelesses. In
addition, the Company’s representatives may franetio time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futustness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exgeaim,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” ad other words and terms of similar meaning, tylprddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

« the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneeasnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other mesasdr
financial performance, and market position,

* worldwide economic, political, and capital marketéditions, such as interest rates, foreign cugrexchange
rates, financial conditions of our suppliers andtoemers, and natural and other disasters or cliof@age
affecting the operations of the Company or its ieppand customers,

* new business opportunities, product developmeiot fatture performance or results of current or apited
products,

» the scope, nature or impact of acquisitions, fiatalliances and divestitures,

« the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

» future levels of indebtedness, common stock re@ges and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

* pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e assetimpairments,

» tax liabilities,

» information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental aheérofws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigr¢imat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histak results or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenfsetteling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includingpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analy&lsnancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hreggdof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquity” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part II, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbasidered an integral part of Part I, ltem 2, Hdgement's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebkults of Operations.” For additional informatmmcerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary ni@diiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with tHEGfrom time to time.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Adout Market Risk.

In the context of Item 3, 3M is exposed to marksit due to the risk of loss arising from adversanges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrqarites. Changes in those factors could impaztGbmpany’s
results of operations and financial condition. &aliscussion of sensitivity analysis related tséhiypes of market
risks, refer to Part Il, Iltem 7A, Quantitative aQdalitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in 3MCsirrent Report on
Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M'’s 2@t®iual Report on Form 10-K). There have been nterizd
changes in information that would have been pravidehe context of Iltem 3 from the end of the pding year until
September 30, 2017. However, the Company doesgeoisk management discussion in various plac#ssn
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, primarily in the atives note.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mg@aent, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 0k, of the effectiveness of the design and opmradf the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@med in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) asefand of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatin, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fio@h Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures are effective.

b. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasnsdty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddisi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resopla@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whiglkexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsifiplementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éwmancial reporting and will require testing fdfestiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeléments of certain processes/sub-processeamnitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolt e ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementsthpplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropgatensidered within the testing for effectivenesth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof its evaluation described in the above graghs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circunt&ts has not materially affected our internal adrdver financial
reporting.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2017
PART Il. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part |, Item 1, Note 12, “Commitmentd &ontingencies
of this document, and should be considered anralk@grt of Part Il, ltem 1, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whatbelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdpart I, ltem 2,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and cearmg, worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and othentries that are beyond its control, such asei@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widespreassmnary
conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government defegiuction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@r@any operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&abiiy and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, eharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atiar regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could mase cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciestirely evaluate the Company’s credit profile andigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factetsch include financial strength, business andricial risk, as

well as transparency with rating agencies and timaes of financial reporting. 3M currently has af-Aredit rating

with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and ha Al credit rating with a stable outlook fromddig’s Investors
Service. The Company’s credit ratings have sergddwer 3M’s borrowing costs and facilitate acctesa variety of
lenders. The Company’s ongoing transition to adpeiptimized capital structure, financed with aibahial low-cost

debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating in the futuFailure to maintain strong investment grade getiwould adversely
affect the Company’s cost of funding and could asetly affect liquidity and access to capital masket

* The Company’s results are affected by competitaaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingted tntroduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporsddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelssefitnry maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price changmsges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, ulioly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company’s abilitsetaize projected
growth rates in its sales and earnin@ecause the Company’s financial statements arendi@ated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveranesierived from outside the United States, the f@oy's results
of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyeaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.
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* The Company’s growth objectives are largely defmart on the timing and market acceptance of its pr@auct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpseducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asnaility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company'’s future results are subject to flations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaaill natural gas and their derivatives, due to shgets, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchandesrigatural disasters and other factofsie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aedhg (including oil and natural gas and their datives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss fpossible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evanlte terminated in the future. Any sustainedriniption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could havatarial adverse effect on the Company. In addlitichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canyangdhat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestiturasd other unusual events resulting from portfolianagement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitganizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgaiinal structure and has made and may continugate
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedaéf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesnitiain
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsfma, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormep operational efficiency and productivity, whillowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficiefiuig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phaseulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorlwide basis. There can be no assurance that @ik projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnessformation on a worldwide basis over the resiteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gowgjs information technology infrastructure coufdarfere with the
Company’s operations, compromise information beilloggo the Company and its customers, supplierd,employees,
exposing the Company to liability which could acdety impact the Company’s business and reputatiothe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoonaéchnology networks and systems, some of whiehr@naged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store maat information, and to manage or support a ¥aeé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compewliects and stores certain data, including pedpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigdessonal information in certain of our businedses is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeim@osed controls. Despite our cybersecurity messs(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup rentelgive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upggtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagdsruptions or shutdowns due to attack by hackets@aches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, dempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdishsters or other catastrophic events. It isiplasr such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehperiod, up to and including several years. Whitiehave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighese types of threats to the Company’s informatchnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datelad a material impact to the Company. Therebmagther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andiastlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.ugh events
could result in legal claims or proceedings, ligpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojrerations, and
damage to the Company’s reputation, which couldesly affect the Company’s business. AlthoughQbepany
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maintains insurance coverage for various cyber#gaisks, there can be no guarantee that all amskssses incurred
will be fully insured.

* The Company'’s defined benefit pension and pastraent plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result§he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company’s funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Sigaifit changes in market interest rates, decrendée ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets, landntdegislative or regulatory changes relatmgefined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company'’s funding oblmaiand adversely impact its results of operatémscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrugti, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becauseotiteomes of litigation, including regulatory magteare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cugstintates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wiggglicable, or make such estimates for mattengquely not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagi judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavégatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have ter@ adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitéscussion of the legal proceedings involving@wnpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discuadidote 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Iltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities @ahUse of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sugfpp@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2016,s38ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgabus10 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-ekshled end date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities (registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Total Number of ~ Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of  Average Price as Part of Publicly under the Plans

Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs
Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2017 1,24558C $ 177.61 1,245,347 $ 6,835
February 1-28, 2017 1,038,36% 182.41 1,037,719 $ 6,645
March 1-31, 2017 1,168,89: $ 190.75 1,168,89: $ 6,422
Total January 1-March 31, 2017 3,452,835 183.50 3,451,959 $ 6,422
April 1-30, 2017 934,900 $ 191.64 933,463 $ 6,244
May 1-31, 2017 1,017,290 197.80 1,017,000 $ 6,042
June 1-30, 2017 396,770 $ 208.83 396,770 $ 5,960
Total April 1-June 30, 2017 2,348,966 197.21 2,347,233 $ 5,960
Total January 1-June 30, 2017 5,801,79t $ 189.05 5,799,192 $ 5,960
July 1-31, 2017 431,272% 205.00 431,272 $ 5,871
August 1-31, 2017 572,552 $ 204.69 572,552 $ 5,754
September 1-30, 2017 893,558% 209.62 893,559 $ 5,567
Total July 1-September 30, 2017 1,897,385 $ 207.08 1,897,38: $ 5,567
Total January 1-September 30, 2017 7,699,1%8 193.49 7,696,575 $ 5,567

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessrithed
above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichuannounced plans or programs includes shaneshased
under the Board'’s authorizations described above.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities— No matters require disclosure.

Iltem 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresPursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wal#&tReform and Consumer

Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is requireddisclose, in connection with the mines it opesainformation
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters in its periodic reports filed with thEG. The information
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters required by Section 1503(a) of the Adhtluded in
Exhibit 95 to this quarterly report.

Item 5. Other Information. — No matters require disclosure.

Item 6. Exhibits.

(12)
(15)

(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)
(32.2)

(99)

Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ofpes.

A letter from the Company'’s independent resgisd public accounting firm regarding unaudite@iim
consolidated financial statements.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

(101.INS) XBRL Instance Document.

(101.SCH) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
(101.CAL) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
(101.DEF) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkke Document.
(101.LAB) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
(101.PRE) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiorkhase Document.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

3M COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: October 31, 2017

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestad,

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Gangestad is the Principal Financial Officaddas
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Regis.)

86



3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EXHIBIT 12

(Millions)
Nine months
ended
September 30, Year Year Year Year Year
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

EARNINGS
Income before income taxes $ 5876% 7053% 6823% 7,026% 65623% 6,351
Add:
Amortization of capitalized interest 15 20
Total fixed charges (excluding

capitalized interest) 238 298 250 246 248 263
Less:
Equity in undistributed income of equi

method investments 8 3
TOTAL EARNINGS $ 6,121 $ 7363% 7090% 729 % 6832% 6,631
FIXED CHARGES
Interest expense (including capitalizec

interest and excluding expense on e

extinguishment of debt) 165 208 162 159 166 194
Portion of rent expense under operating

leases representative of the interest

factor 83 100 101 104 103 92
TOTAL FIXED CHARGES $ 248 $ 308 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED

CHARGES 24.7 23.9 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2

For purposes of calculating the ratio above:

Earnings is defined as income before income taa@gytization of capitalized interest, and fixedrgjes (less
capitalized interest), excluding equity in undistied income of equity method investments. Fixeat@és consist of
interest expense (including capitalized interest @xcluding any expense related to early extinguesft of debt) and
approximately one-third of rent expense under dpeydeases (considered representative of thedstdactor).
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EXHIBIT 15
October 31, 2017
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, DC 20549
Commissioners:
We are aware that our report dated October 31, 2@laur review of interim financial information 8M Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Company”), which is includadhe Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Qtfar quarter
ended September 30, 2017, is incorporated by maferm its Registration Statements on Form S-8 idRegion Nos.
333-30689, 333-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 3331D01333-109282, 333-128251, 333-130150, 333-15183%
156626, 333-156627, 333-166908, 333-174562, 332481333-181270 and 333-211431) and Form S-3 (Ragen
Nos. 333-216219, 33-48089, 333-42660 and 333-109211
Very truly yours,

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutentbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tffte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

October 31, 2017
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tfftb@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

October 31, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
September 30, 2017 as filed with the SecuritiesExahange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8paringe G.
Thulin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, tifgr pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptgsuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieaty knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

October 31, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
September 30, 2017 as filed with the SecuritiesExahange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@parNicholas
C. Gangestad, Chief Financial Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135Ca@dspted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20082at,tto my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

October 31, 2017
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EXHIBIT 95
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the third quarter of 2017, the Company haddhewing mine safety information to report in acdance with Section 1503(a) of the Act, in conretivith the Pittsboro,
North Carolina mine, the Little Rock, Arkansas mitilee Corona, California mine, and the Wausau, @fist mine (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate  Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section ecdion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) ($) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — — — — 3 = — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 2 — — — — 3 — — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 1 — — — — 3 — — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 — — — — — 3 — — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 — — — — — 3 = — No No —
Total 3 — — — — 3 — — — — —
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